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Corporate Profile
NI by

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited
has been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since
2003. The Group is the leading producer
of fermentation-based amino acids, food
additive products and cassava starch-
based industrial products in Asia. Our
products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textile, and
chemical products in Vietnam and other
ASEAN countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan
and several European countries. Most

of our products are marketed under the
VEDAN brand name.

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group's production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Financial Highlights
MBRE
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For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017
Uss$’000 US$'000 Difference
TER FET =8
Revenue g 356,772 322,805 10.5%
Gross profit S 67,498 68,137 (0.9%)
Profit for the year REZHM 17,394 18,738 (7.2%)
Profit attributable to owners BB AEERET 14,285 19,061 (25.1%)
Basic earnings per share BREARZEF 0.94 US centsZl 1.25 US cents3
Diluted earnings per share FREERF 0.94 US centsEl 1.25 US cents5
Final dividend proposed per share B FR R AR S 0.265 US centsE{l  0.443 US cents 1l
Total dividends paid and B R ER
proposed per share BRIk EER 0.563 US centsE{l  0.750 US cents3 1L
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REVENUE
A ARG REF g
in US$'000 T3¢ in US$'000 F7T
25,000 22,501 400,000 356,772
327,640 322,805
19,061 '
20,000 300,000
15,000 14,285
200,000
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5,000 100,000
0 0
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
REVENUE BY PRODUCTS REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION
REGRDBEZWEA EihE o 2 &
12 months ended 31 Dec 2018 12 months ended 31 Dec 2018
HE-_T-N\F+-_A=t+—BIt+=EA HE-_T-N\F+-A=t+—BIt+=EA
3.3% 57%
59%
° 7.0%
9.1%
8.9%
66.0% 49.8%
15.7% 10.9%
17.7% .
. &i;%%g;gascnmgs ?;icggchemicals . \ée;?am . ;Sé?gamémbercounues
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it E %@

Annual Report 2018 & 3§

05



06 vVedan Internat

ional (Hol

dings) Limited

Great Vision

O

RFHEIRR (ER)BRAR

= HE = I

H



Armed with modern technology
and sound management, we have
successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the

consumers’ tastes and demands.
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Yang, Tou-Hsiung # SE 4
ChairmanZ &

In 2018, the global economic growth has slowed down compared
with 2017. In the first quarter of 2018, the worldwide economy
continued to maintain expansion comparable to that of 2017.
However, starting from the second quarter, the US-Sino trade war
escalated, the exchange rate between the US Dollar and other
currencies fluctuated and the status of conflicts in the Middle East
and South Asia remained intense with tensions. Coupled with the
impact of extreme weather events caused by climate change, these
factors combined to add more uncertainties to the global economy.
Persistently high international oil prices and highly volatile foreign
currency exchange and interest rates in different countries also raised
the risk of inflation. The economies of emerging markets continued
to grow faster than those of developed countries. In Vietnam,
economic sentiment continued to improve in 2018, as demonstrated
by GDP growth of 7.08% with foreign investment increasing steadily,
and the consumer price index remaining steady. Import and export
trading volume surged to new highs and a trade surplus was recorded
for three consecutive years. The exchange rate of the Vietnam Dong
against the US Dollar (USD) depreciated slightly by 1.8% last year,
meaning the local currency stayed relatively stable. Vietnam achieved
an overall stable economic growth in the first half-year, and that
presented the Group with the opportunity to enhance its results.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®RES

Regarding our operations in 2018, revenue from the Group's core
products including MSG, modified starch, soda, fertiliser and feed
products increased, due to the improving market sentiment that
boosted demand. However, rising prices of coal and raw materials
such as cassava and industrial salt pushed up production costs. Also,
for some of the Group's products, their selling prices continued to
stay in a low level due to the keen market competition, thus their
profits were squeezed. The Group therefore continued to put major
efforts into stabilising costs, actively expanding its business, boosting
sales and developing new products as well as new markets during the
year, with an aim to raise its profit margin.

As for the business operations and revenue during the year, the
Group's revenue amounted to approximately US$356,772,000, a
solid increase of US$33,967,000, or around 10.5%, when compared
with the previous year. The increase was mainly due to the stronger
demand for its different products stimulating a rise in sales volume
as well as selling prices and, in turn, boosting the Group's total
sales revenue. While prices of sugar sources tapered a bit, energy
cost and the prices of certain raw materials increased, hence
overall production costs also climbed. Gross profit for the year was
approximately US$67,498,000 and gross profit margin dropped
by 0.9% year-on-year to 18.9%. Net profit was US$17,394,000,
approximately US$1,344,000 less year-on-year, and net profit margin
was 4.9%.

Regarding major geographic markets and segment performance,
the demand for products and level of competition varied from
market to market. In Vietnam, overall economic sentiment steadily
picked up and the performance of various products including MSG,
seasonings, modified starch, maltose, soda, fertiliser and feed
products improved alongside the increasing market demand. Only the
sales volume and selling price and thus the revenue of the specialty
chemical hydrochloric acid, dropped because more of the product
was used internally by the Group for production and also because
of price competition in the market during the year. Because of the
positive factors cited above, the Group was able to boost sales
and overall revenue from Vietnam rose by 9.1% year-on-year also
aided by stable quality products, strong brand influence and the
support of well-established sales channels with a thorough grasp of
market demand. In the PRC market, major products such as MSG
and seasonings, which were still affected by price competition, also
recorded moderate growth from the previous year. Despite this,
overall revenue from the PRC market grew by about 34.2% vyear-
on-year with starch and trade products managing notable revenue
growth during the year. In Japan, as a result of the slower upturn
of economic sentiment and the continued price competition faced
by various products, selling prices of key products including MSG
and fertilisers slightly dropped. As such, the Group’s sales volume

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited &k B (EZER)BRATR
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

in this market also fell and revenue was down by about 1.8%
when compared with the previous year. With respect to the ASEAN
market, while strong demand fuelled revenue from fertiliser and feed
products and modified starch, competition restricted the sales volume
of MSG and maltose, therefore results of the market were about
the same when compared with last year. In the US, with the sales of
MSG and maltose products rising, overall performance of this market
moderately rebounded, while in Europe, increasing demand bolstered
the performance of MSG, modified starch and fertiliser and feed
products.

By product, revenue from the Group’s major products, MSG and
seasonings, with market competition easing, grew by about 5.2%
when compared with the previous year. As for starch products,
another key segment of the Group, with price of the raw material
cassava and demand for products surging during the year, the Group
sold more modified starch and cassava starch at higher selling prices,
and as a result revenue from the segment swelled. Maltose was
another key starch product that also benefited from the higher price
of cassava and recorded higher sales volume, selling prices as well as
revenue during the year. Therefore, revenue from starch products and
maltose for the year saw a notable increase of approximately 27.0%
against the last corresponding period. Seeing the market potential
and bright development prospects of these products, the Group is
striving to develop and explore as well as extend its reach to different
products, so that it may offer a greater diversity to customers
while developing products of higher value. Regarding the specialty
chemicals segment, basic chemicals like hydrochloric acid and soda
have been in steady demand in Vietnam as the economy there has
continued to improve. Hydrochloric acid, however, saw a drop in
sales volume and selling price due to the internal use in production
and market competition during the year. Soda, on the other hand,
recorded notable growth in revenue, and hence the entire specialty
chemicals segment saw a 12.2% increase in revenue against last year.
As for the fertiliser and feed products, they were in higher demand
in Vietnam, ASEAN countries, Taiwan and Europe, hence both their
selling prices and sales performance increased. In particular, the
Group secured new feed products customers in Vietnam, hence
achieving relatively better sales of the products. In all, the sales
volume of fertiliser and feed products grew by approximately 14.9%
year-on-year.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®RES

During the year, with a number of products facing price competition
and bearing higher production costs, the Group has focused on
strengthening its businesses and improving cost control, and at the
same time developing new products and new markets. Towards
that end, the Group has adopted a more flexible approach to
procurement of raw materials and continued to improve production
technologies during the year to help stabilise costs, as well as
maintain competitiveness in its production. In terms of marketing
strategy, the Group has set up a subsidiary in Cambodia during the
year in order to promote a local sales network and look for new
business opportunities. On boosting sales, other than growing the
Vietnam market, the Group also put effort into developing emerging
markets with promising growth potential. It has also strengthened
its distribution channels and, for the relatively mature sales channels,
the Group adjusted its sales and marketing strategy, to enhance
and realise the full potential of its sales network. Furthermore, it
has stepped up research and development of new products, which
will be introduced to the market with the objective of substantially
boosting its brand influence. Within the PRC operation, the Group
has continued to strengthen its business development team, strived
to expand markets in different regions and introduced new high gross
profit products.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

Looking into 2019, we are aware that the Group will still be
operating in a fast-changing environment. The prices of some raw
materials may rise and the market will continue to be competitive.
However, the expected sustained growth of Vietnam economy
presents huge business opportunities. Therefore, the Group will
make more forceful strides into new markets and in developing new
products to enhance its brand influence, by more effectively using
its channel resources, as it aims to raise the flexibility and capability
action of its operations. Relevant strategies will be formulated to
help the Group to capture opportunities and cope with the rapidly
evolving operating environment. At the same time, the Group will
continue to strive to stabilise production costs, hasten development
of new products and the pace of strategic alliances. In doing so, we
shall be able to strengthen and effectively execute our sales strategies
in Vietnam as the country opens its market and its economy
steadily grows. We shall also have opportunities to further expand
our different businesses and markets. Building on its existing solid
business foundation, the Group believes its businesses will march in
a positive direction towards growth. The management team are well
aware of the opportunities in the changing operating environment
and their responsibilities, thus they will pragmatically execute the
operational strategies set with open mind and proactive attitude,
and thereby help the Group develop and achieve breakthroughs in its
operations and its results.

By Order of the Board
Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

26 March 2019
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Standing out in

a Specialised Industry
REREM

O EXPHNREE
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As a successful long-term player in a RFTEBR T e BRI EEALT

market with significant entry barriers, FiES mMEEg KA
Vedan International has distinct He  2E AR S B
competitive advantages that add real FEIDEMNMEENEE
value to its products. With advanced REMP BB KRR 2 B
expertise in large-scale fermentation B R AN T8 (b 2
technology, starch processing conversion T fi#{t, 2255 4 3 £ 17 - bk
technology and chemical and electro- [ B Tl 35 R SR A EE SR R R
chemical technology, Vedan International &) %7 & &h » £ & 2K B 7| 8l i&
is developing new products which SR SH B I] o

represent the latest breakthroughs in
industrial science and look set to be major
profit drivers in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

I. BUSINESS OVERVIEW — RBAE

Global economic growth in 2018 slowed down when compared
to 2017 as the year-on-year global GDP growth was roughly
flat. Different countries showed a mixed performance in terms
of economic growth, with the emerging economies generally
outperforming the developed countries. Apart from a few
products, the price of bulk commodities and various raw
materials had generally declined. However, the unemployment
rate was relatively low around the world as a whole. According
to statistics released by the International Monetary Fund (IMF),
among the major economies, in terms of GDP, only the US
saw an upward trend, while the Eurozone and Japan faced
a downslide. In the emerging markets, aside from very few
countries such as India and Vietnam, other economies slowed
down to varying degrees. Economic analysis reports mentioned
that, despite the international financial crisis showing signs of
easing, there are still risks of uncertainty. In particular, since the
second quarter of 2019, the Sino-US trade conflict has added
uncertainties to the global economy, trading and exchange
rates. Hence, how to maintain steady progress in the path of
recovery and making adjustment to maintain stable growth has
become the top agenda item on the economic policy of many
countries.

The GDP of Vietnam in 2018 reached 7.08%, the highest
in the past decade, exceeding the pre-set growth target of
6.7%. The GDP growth in both the first and fourth quarters
was above 7%, mainly attributable to the steady growth
of the manufacturing industry and personal consumption,
strong export and the inflow of foreign direct investment
(FDI). The average consumer price index (CPl) was 3.54%,
higher than that of last year. Total import and export trading
value set a new historical high of approximately US$482.2
billion. Total exports rose by 13.8% year-on-year while total
imports increased by 11.5%, resulting in a trade surplus
for the third consecutive year. Meanwhile, the inflow of FDI
amounted to US$19.1 billion, climbing to a new high for
the third consecutive year and representing a year-on-year
growth of 9.1%. The total capital arising from registration
of new enterprises with foreign investors, the increase in
capital injection and the acquisition of equity interest by
foreign investors together was approximately 99% of that in
2017. Foreign exchange reserves also jumped to a new high.
Vietnam's stock market outperformed other Asian countries,
reaching the highest investment by foreign capital of the past
three years. The interest rate and exchange rate still remained
within a stable range. The exchange rate of the Vietnam Dong
against the US dollar depreciated only slightly by 1.8% during
the year. The economic growth in Vietnam in 2018 continued
to contribute to the outstanding performance, making the
country one of the most attractive investment destinations in
the Asia Pacific region.

14  vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 BIBS (#28%) SR A F
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

While the growth of the global economy slowed down, various
economic indicators in Vietnam showed an outstanding
performance. This was also accompanied by more intense
competition and the rise in raw material and energy prices.
The Group saw both growth and decline in its main products.
For instance, the growth in market demand for specialty
chemicals, fertilisers and feed products pushed up revenue
and gross profit, while the rising costs of energy and main
raw materials led to a drop in gross profit of MSG, modified
starch and maltose products despite the Group recorded an
increase in revenue in these products. In 2018, the Group's
revenue increased by 10.5% or US$33,967,000 year-on-
year to US$356,772,000, gross profit decreased by 0.9% or
US$639,000 year-on-year to US$67,498,000, while the overall
gross profit margin was down from 21.1% in 2017 to 18.9%.
The Group's net profit declined by 7.2% or US$1,344,000 year-
on-year to US$17,394,000, with net profit margin down from
5.8% to 4.9% year-on-year. To cope with market competition,
the cost increased could not be fully reflected in the selling
prices. Hence, cost climbing higher than the increase in product
prices led to a slight decrease in the Group’s profit despite the
growth in revenue recorded during the year.

It is generally forecast that the global economy will continue
to show a sluggish growth trend in 2019 and will still face
uncertainties caused by the policies of major nations. Apart
from the changes to the Sino-US trade friction, the political
tension arising from Brexit and populism, the effects of extreme
weather and the conflicts in the Middle East and South Asia,
the economic factors such as the possible continued interest
rate hikes in the US, the implementation of supply-side
structural reform in the PRC as well as the rising energy prices
will also add uncertainties which may affect economic growth.
On the contrary, in Vietnam, the government has actively
participated in the consolidation of the regional economy. It
has benefitted from the introduction of FDI facilitated by, for
example, the Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for
Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP) and the European Union's free
trade agreements (FTA). Vietnam has also benefitted from the
shift of investment from foreign investors to the country to
avoid the trade tensions. However, it still has to face the risks
caused by the Sino-US trade disputes and non-tariff barriers
for export products. Amid such changes, the Group will remain
prudent and will formulate and execute flexible action plans to
respond to the challenges of the business environment. It will
endeavour to expand to new businesses, develop new products
and new markets, control production costs and review its
strategic alliance, in a bid to achieve further breakthroughs and
development.
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS

ERoWm

(1) Sales Analysis by Market (=) MGHEIN
Unit: US$'000 BAL:TFET
2018 2017 Difference
—E-\§ —t&F =82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Country Bx &8 % G % 25 %
Vietnam i 177,753 49.8% 162,986 50.5% 14,767 9.1%
Japan BA 63,015 17.7% 64,199 19.9% (1,184) (1.8%)
PRC HE 39,004 10.9% 29,056 9.0% 9,948 34.2%
ASEAN HBEEXR 31,593 8.9% 31,792 9.8% (199) (0.6%)
UsS x5 20,327 5.7% 16,761 5.2% 3,566 21.3%
Others Hith 25,080 7.0% 18,011 5.6% 7,069 39.2%
Total CH 356,772 100.0% 322,805 100.0% 33,967 10.5%
Vietnam 1. MRS
Vietnam is the largest market of the Group. In MERAEEZE - KM% -
2018, due to the steady growth in the economic FTEMER2018FLES R

sentiment in Vietnam, the market consumption
power there increased. As such, the Group's
revenue from the market rose by 9.1% or
US$14,767,000 year-on-year to approximately
US$177,753,000. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the Group’s mounting of
vigorous sales promotions and other business
activities for MSG and seasonings to boost sales
volume. The sales and selling prices of soda,
modified starch and maltose increased due to the
growth in market demand, which resulting in the
rise in revenue. At the same time, selling price of
fertilisers and feed products was adjusted upward.
The revenue rose despite a drop in overall sales
volume. The Group also actively developed new
special fertiliser products. As revenue from other
markets increased, the share of the revenue from
the Vietnam market decreased slightly to 49.8% of
the Group's total revenue from 50.5% in 2017.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2.

Japan

Japan is the second largest market of the Group.
The performance of the market declined during
the year, mainly due to the slower-than-expected
recovery of the Japanese economy and the
competition in the MSG product market. Thus, to
maintain a stable performance in this long standing
market, the Group has adopted a more flexible
sales strategy which led to a drop in revenue.
Revenue from modified starch and fertiliser and
feed products rose due to the increase in the selling
prices of these products to maintain a reasonable
profit. In Japan, apart from MSG, the Group's active
efforts to develop and expand the modified starch
segment also made a noteworthy contribution to
the performance during the year. Revenue from
the market amounted to US$63,015,000 during
the year, representing a decrease of 1.8% or
US$1,184,000 from 2017. The share of revenue
generated from Japan accounted for 17.7% of
the Group’s total revenue, slightly lower than the
19.9% recorded in 2017.

The PRC

Revenue from the PRC market increased by 34.2%
or US$9,948,000 to US$39,004,000 during the
year. Its share of the Group's total revenue climbed
from 9.0% in 2017 to 10.9%. The changes in the
sales volume and selling price of the MSG market
during the year resulted in the rise of sales volume
and selling price of MSG. The demand for modified
starch, fertiliser and feed products increased, which
led to a year-on-year growth in sales volume and
revenue. Moreover, the trading of the distribution
products in the PRC market developed by the
Group in recent years saw a gradual growth during
the year, which drove the increase in revenue.
Consequently, the sales of the PRC market jumped
significantly when compared with last year.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

4.

ASEAN member countries

During the year, revenue from ASEAN member
countries, excluding Vietnam, modestly decreased
by 0.6% or US$199,000 year-on-year to
US$31,593,000. Its contribution to the Group's
total revenue was down from 9.8% to 8.9%. The
decrease was mainly because the revenue growth of
MSG in the ASEAN market was below expectation.
Sales volume of its customers dropped due to the
continued price competition of MSG, leading to
the decrease of revenue. However, the revenue
of modified starch, fertiliser and feed grew due
to the greater demand for these products. The
ASEAN market is a major long-term development
focus of the Group. A subsidiary was thus set up in
Cambodia by the Group in the second half of 2018,
which will, in the initial stage, focus on developing
the market and deploying related networks, and
will put more effort to develop the market by
strengthening sales and promotion of different
products. The subsidiary is positioned as a base for
further development, and is expected to facilitate a
breakthrough in the growth in ASEAN market.

The US

Revenue from the US market reached
US$20,327,000 during the year, representing a
rise of 21.3% or US$3,566,000 from 2017. The
proportion of its revenue from the market increased
to 5.7% from 5.2% in 2017. The improvement
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales
volume of MSG. Also, driven by a higher shipment
of maltose in the second half of the year to cater to
the demand, sales performance of this product was
better than the same period last year. Besides, the
Group is actively developing new markets and new
clientele for organic maltose and modified starch.
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Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

— BESW(R)

(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued) (=) MBHEED T (&)
6.  Other regions 6. A5
Other regions mainly include Taiwan, Korea and EMmErERAE BE KR
the European Union (“EU"). Total revenue rose by Bms AEESFEKE
39.2% or US$7,069,000 during the year amounting 25,080,000 7T« i & & X
to US$25,080,000. The growth in revenue was b0 R UK R R MR
mainly driven by higher sales of MSG and modified 0z RETE - R20175 1
starch. The share of the revenue from other regions hN39.2%3k & 587,069,000
increased to 7.0% of the Group's total revenue TL G EE B LW AR5 6%IEE
from 5.6%. 7.0% -
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (Z) EmSBEEIN
Unit: US$'000 Bl TET
2018 2017 Difference
—Z-N\F —T—tF =R
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Item EHE &8 % &8 % i %
MSG and seasonings Bk #&+38 bk £t 235,331 66.0% 223,612 69.3% 11,719 5.2%
Modified starch & BRI+ R A
native starch & maltose i3+ 12 56,128 15.7% 44,182 13.7% 11,946 27.0%
Specialty chemicals FLEM 32,552 9.1% 29,012 9.0% 3,540 12.2%
Fertilisers and feed R LA
products 21,165 5.9% 18,425 5.7% 2,740 14.9%
Others Hith 11,596 3.3% 7,574 2.3% 4,022 53.1%
Total At 356,772 100.0% 322,805 100.0% 33,967 10.5%
1. MSG and seasonings 1. BRiEELGE

During the year, revenue from MSG and seasonings-
related products amounted to US$235,331,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 5.2%, or
US$11,719,000. The revenue growth of MSG was
mainly owed to the rising of sales volume caused
by the strengthening of promotion and business
activities in Vietnam and the easing of import
competition between the PRC and Vietnam. Beside
revenue of MSG from Taiwan, the US and Europe
also increased. Notwithstanding the revenue from
Japan and ASEAN dropped in varying degrees, the
Group's revenue from MSG achieved a modest
growth. Generally speaking, the revenue growth
of MSG and seasonings-related products was less
than that of other products of the Group. The
contribution of these products decreased to 66% of
the Group’s total revenue from 69.3% in 2017.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

2.

Modified starch/Native starch/Maltose

During the year, cassava, the raw material for
producing modified and native starch and maltose
products, was in serious supply shortage due to
a plague of pests on its plantations. The price of
cassava starch surged as a result of the jump in
market demand, leading also to the rise in both
the selling price and sales volume of the Group’s
cassava products. However, the growth in revenue
was not able to offset the growth in costs. During
the year, revenue from modified and native starch
and maltose products climbed 27.0% year-on-
year, or US$11,946,000, to US$56,128,000. Sales
of modified starch showed higher growth in
Vietnam, the ASEAN market, the PRC and Europe.
The sales volume and selling price of maltose also
improved due to a continuous increase in demand.
At present, the Group is actively developing and
expanding new products with higher added values,
including organic syrup and starch products as well
as new markets. Growth is expected in this segment
in the future.

Specialty chemicals/Fertilisers and feed products
Specialty chemicals including hydrochloric acid,
soda and bleach are sold in the Vietnam market.
During the year, the Vietnam economy continued to
grow steadily resulting in the increasing demand for
basic industrial chemicals. Revenue from specialty
chemicals was up by 12.2%, or US$3,540,000,
year-on-year from US$32,552,000 during the
year. Its proportion of the Group’s total revenue
increased from 9.0% to 9.1%. At the same time,
global demand for soda products increased but
supply was reduced. This translated into a higher
sales volume and selling price and thus higher
revenue for the Group. As for hydrochloric acid, the
relatively large proportion of output used internally
by the Group during the year, together with the
price competition with imported products and
local manufacturers combined to cause the drop
of selling price and sales performance. The Group
has carried out the expansion plan for specialty
chemicals production facilities to boost the growth
of this product.
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

3.

Specialty chemicals/Fertilisers and feed products
(continued)

During the year, the price of fertilisers and feed
products were adjusted according to market
conditions and a growth and drop in selling prices
and sales volume were seen. Overall, revenue of
this segment climbed resulting partly from the
stronger demand from the PRC market which drove
up selling price, and partly from the Group’s efforts
to promote and develope new special fertilisers
and feed products and engage new agents in key
development zones and conducting a trial run on
farms. The Group's revenue from fertilisers and feed
products increased by 14.9%, or US$2,740,000,
year-on-year to US$21,165,000 and its contribution
to the Group’s total revenue rose from 5.7% to
5.9%.

Other products

Other products mainly include new products and
agent products that the Group distributes and
sells in Vietnam and the PRC. Revenue reached
US$11,596,000, up 53.1% or US$4,022,000 year-
on-year, making up 3.3% of the Group’s total
revenue, up from 2.3% in the past year. The growth
in revenue was attributable to the Group's strategy
to promote new trade product, to form a special
sales unit and to strengthen the building of sales
channels. The substantial growth in sales volume
of products distributed in the PRC including coffee
beans, frozen food and wines was another reason
for the improvement in revenue.
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MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

1.

Cassava

The area of cassava plantations were reduced in Vietnam,
Thailand and Cambodia during the 2017/2018 harvest
period. This, plus the pest attack on the crops at this
time resulted in an ongoing cassava supply shortage,
substantially pushed up the price of raw materials of
cassava and starch. Due to the change in farmers’
plantation habits, effects of climate change and market
competition, it is expected that the supply of new
material cassava will continue to be affected in 2019. As
a result, the production of the Group’s cassava starch-
related products will face challenge. Hence, in addition
to relying on information links to secure raw material
supply sources, the Group will also strive to implement
its procurement strategy effectively and form strategic
alliances with supply channels to ensure the access to
stable raw material supplies.

Molasses

The global sugar market experienced a supply shortage
in 2016/2017. Sugar production reached a new high in
the 2017/2018 harvest period while demand fell. Hence,
the price of molasses stabilised in 2018. According to the
report issued by the International Sugar Organisation,
the excess global supply of sugar would compensate for
a reduction in production volume of 2,000,000 tonnes
by key sugar producing countries in 2018/2019. In 2019,
as Brazil continues to use more sugar cane to produce
ethanol, India remains vulnerable to adverse climate
conditions and pest attacks, the EU is reducing the
sugar plantation area, Thailand continues to implement
a biomass energy business plan, as well as the food
and beverage producers are reducing sugar content in
their products to meet the rising health awareness of
consumers, therefore production and export volume of
sugar may continue to drop. As for molasses, the Group
needs to monitor various factors that are expected to
slightly push up the price of molasses including plantation
area, climate change and biomass energy policy.
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1Ill. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

3.

Energy

The global energy landscape has changed drastically in
2018. Among the oil producing countries, the US shale
oil industry experienced rapid growth and increased crude
oil production in 2018. Greater fluctuations in petroleum
prices made renewable energy more competitive. The
coal market has also recovered from the in-depth global
adjustments conducted in preceding years. In 2018,
except for countries in Europe and the US, all other major
coal producing countries maintained their growth in coal
production volume. A report issued by the International
Energy Agency (IEA) stated that although developed
countries are reducing the use of coal, emerging
economies represented by India, Indonesia and Vietnam
still have huge demand for coal as a means to quickly
enhance power generation. Thus, coal price is expected
to remain at a high level.

With regard to electricity price, the Vietnam Government
continued to implement policy to stabilise related prices
in 2018 which is essential for supporting steady economic
growth and a stable inflation rate. However, as Vietnam
has already achieved the goal of controlling its inflation
rate at below 4% in 2018, the country has decided to
adjust the electricity price in the second quarter of 2019.

IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW

(1)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalent, short-
term bank deposits, and structured bank deposits
of US$58,445,000, US$11,200,000 or about 16.1%
less than that at the end of 2017. Short-term bank
borrowings increased year-on-year by US$1,590,000 or
about 21.0% to US$9,173,000. The decrease in bank
deposits and rise in short-term bank borrowings were
mainly due to the increase in procurement of agricultural
products to ensure stable raw material sources and prices.
Long-term bank borrowings declined by US$821,000 or
around 3.0% to US$26,993,000. Total bank borrowings
amounted to US$36,166,000, US$769,000 or around
2.2% more than that at the end of 2017. All of the
borrowings were denominated in US dollars. The
proportions of short-term and long-term bank borrowings
were 25.4% and 74.6% respectively. During the period,
net finance income of US$97,000 was recorded in 2018
while US$49,000 was recorded in 2017.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) M. MBEIE(E)
(1) Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued) (=) "BESHBER (&)

Trade receivables were US$33,151,000, representing fEWE 5k 3k #33,151,0003% 7T
an increase of US$1,500,000 or around 4.7% when #2017 K3 H11,500,0003 Tt -
compared with that in the end of 2017. Around 63.5% #94.7% - 30K B A9 FE TR SR AE &)
of the trade receivables were aged within 30 days. As at 63.5% ° 17 E 2 E 2018512 A31
31 December 2018, total inventory was US$91,102,000, H A91,102,000% T £20174 &
up by US$8,234,000 or around 9.9% when compared 3% $N8,234,000% 7T #99.9% 7 &
with that in the end of 2017. The increase in inventory EMEZERHAREBEKMIEMNER
was mainly attributable to the growth in the Group's 201951 AHEEMS 2 RS hNFr
finished products and raw materials for production in Bo

January 2019.

As a result of the slight increase in both bank borrowings HfER kR REREE RGN &
and equity ratio, the Group's gearing ratio (total REEl (BERLEBRRER) B
borrowings to total equity ratio) was 12.6%, nearly the 12.6% #2017 FKMN12.5% : B
same as the 12.5% recorded at the end of 2017. With RREERER FEABEL (8
cash on hand exceeding borrowings, net gearing ratio BRINBRIR & MIF R IR ) B
(total borrowings less cash and deposits to total equity 2017 E2018F A A B -

ratio) was negative in both 2017 and 2018.

Current liabilities for the period increased at the increase HAP - 55 HA {8 FRER JE S R IE IS I BR
of short-term borrowings and payables, the Group's BB BN B R2018F K
current ratio slightly decreased from 3.8 in the end of 3.3 HIER2017FK23.8 ' &H)
2017 to 3.3 in 2018, while the quick ratio declined L EEEFEM H2017FE22.2
from 2.2 in the end of 2017 to 1.8 due to the increase 2 /R1.8 SEAMBN L REFRH) L X
in inventory. Although both the current ratio and the BT BEEEMBEBITDSBRE-

quick ratio dropped, the financial position of the Group
remained sound.

(2) Capital expenditure (Z) EXXH
During the period, capital expenditure amounted to &AL H H£425,520,000
approximately US$25,520,000, US$4,981,000 higher EL B2017FEAZTEB
than the capital expenditure of US$20,539,000 recorded 20,539,0003 JT 1% N4,981,0003%
in 2017. JC°
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(3)

(4)

Exchange rate

In 2018, Vietnam achieved the highest economic growth
in the current decade with a record high import and
export trading volume, foreign exchange reserves and
foreign direct investment capital adequacy ratio. All these
factors were favourable to stabilising the exchange rate of
the Vietnam Dong. The State Bank of Vietnam announced
that the Vietnam Dong depreciated by 1.78% in 2018,
from 22,425 Vietnam Dong/US dollar in the end of 2017
down to 22,825 Vietnam Dong/US dollar in the end of
2018. But the depreciation of the Vietnam Dong was still
far lower than other currencies. In 2018, affected by the
escalation of the Sino-US trade dispute, the exchange
rate of the RMB continued to fall which also caused the
Vietnam Dong to depreciate. The bank rate in December
was more than 23,100 Vietnam Dong to US$1. However,
experts believe the depreciation pressure on exchange
rates will be lessened as the PRC and US will continue to
negotiate over trade issues in 2019 and which seems to
have taken a favourable turn. That plus the inflation rate
in Vietnam being under control in the past few years have
led to a general expectation that the depreciation of the
Vietnam Dong will only be mild.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly responsible
for local sales with transactions denominated in RMB.
The RMB exchange rate appreciated by 6% against the
US dollar in 2017. The trend of the RMB exchange rate in
2018 was basically stabilized, followed by depreciating.
In mid-to-late April, the exchange rate between the RMB
and the US dollar fell due to the escalation of Sino-US
trade friction, the strong rebound of US dollar indices,
quicker depreciation of the currencies of the emerging
markets, continuous fermentation of global disputes and
the slowdown in PRC economic growth. The RMB and
the US dollar fell by a total of 4.9% in 2018. The PRC
could face greater impact if the Sino-US trade war lasts
longer. Therefore the Group will keep a constant watch
on changes in the exchange rates of the RMB.

Earnings per share and dividends

Basic earnings per share were 0.94 US cents for the
period. The Board has resolved to declare payment of
final dividend of 0.265 US cents per share. The dividend
payout ratio was 60%.

M. MO (&)

(=)

(m)

fE =
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2019, though facing a changing global
backdrop and shifting economic trends such as the
uncertainties associated with the development of the Sino-
US trade issues and conflicts in certain regions, the Group
remains optimistic about the global economic trend. To address
the uncertainties and risks arising from the unstable supply
and prices of raw materials, excess production of a number of
products in the market and rapid change in industry operation
and competition, the Group will continue to strengthen its
development, cooperation with partners and innovation and
adopt effective measures to fuel market development and
achieve higher growth.

The Group has reinforced its business foundation in recent
years, striving diligently in various aspects including utilising
resources to lower costs, enhancing product quality and
production efficiency, maintaining long term and close
relationships with customers, expanding domestic and overseas
markets and developing new products, new markets and new
customers. These efforts have started to bear fruit. Looking
ahead, despite facing considerable operational uncertainties,
the Group will continue to adhere to and forcefully implement
its set development strategies to align its goals, mission and
strategies, in order to realise long-term development and
operational efficiency. These strategies include:

o Restructure the product lines to focus on core products,
with an aim to raise the proportion of high value-added
products and reduce the number of low gross profit items
to maintain overall profit of products at a reasonable
level.

o Actively develop new products and boost business in
new markets to enhance market positioning and brand
competitiveness; adjust its business structure, increase
the number of new agents, secure new customers and at
the same time enhance the existing distribution channels
and sustain and apply its brand influence, with the
objective of empowering overall business performance
and expansion.

° Explore procurement channels for raw material
diversification and strengthen its access to critical raw
material sources to provide flexibility.

o Continue to improve production technologies thereby
bolstering production efficiency, and also increase
capital expenditure in order to expand production of
high-potential products so as to maintain its industry
leadership and continue to promote the implementation
of energy-saving projects.
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V.

PROSPECTS (continued)

Draw on the Group’s own resources and innovations
breakthroughs from the execution of its strategies,
combine the strengths of industry peers and players in
other industries and strengthen the communications with
strategic partners; work closely with customers and gear
up for developing customised products so as to boost its
new product portfolio and expand the third party product
business to diversify product channels and marketing
strategies in order to meet the needs of customers in
niche markets.

Adopt the co-opetition strategy and use its production
base in Vietnam to actively develop ASEAN and Free Trade
Agreement (FTA) covered markets. The Comprehensive
and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership
(CPTPP) that will take effect soon will also be conducive
to the development of relevant new high-value
businesses.

Consider extending its foothold in ASEAN countries and
continuing its development in these countries, expand
into other business segments with its core products,
extend its business and distribution network, create new
market opportunities, broaden its brand influence and
eventually expand its business presence.

Promote diversified marketing and business management
models to provide greater convenience and flexibility in
product distribution and information exchange, as well as
strengthen network marketing activities, marketing data
analysis and customer relations management.

Use financial management to devise strategies aiming to
enhance operations efficiency and also lower operations
costs and optimise asset utilisation rate, thus maximising
shareholder value. Steps will also be taken to carry out
effective capital management to mitigate the risk of
foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations amidst
increased turbulence in financial markets.

Operating in a rapidly changing environment, the Group will
maintain flexibility in conducting its business and adjust its
strategic approach in order to maintain its competitiveness
and cooperative relations. Apart from tackling fundamental
operational tasks, the Group will also devote greater efforts to
implement strategies and target new business environments.
While the current situation presents many challenges,
the Group also sees many development opportunities.
The management is confident that by implementing
strategies based on its existing operational foundation as
well as reviewing and implementing various strategies in a
prudent and proactive manner, the Group will be able to
seize more development opportunities in the industry and
realise operational efficiency to achieve breakthroughs and
advancement in its operations.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s
business success is a group of core
products with widespread applications
and strong brand recognition, one

of the Group’s most important and
well-guarded assets. Its renowned
“Vedan” brand MSG, for example, is
considered essential throughout the
food processing industries across Asia
for its role in enhancing the flavours
of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys a
huge and constantly growing market
throughout Vietnam, the PRC, ASEAN

countries, Japan and the United States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SREEERLAAMEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 76, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung Min
Der Commercial Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has
approximately 56 years’ working experience in the MSG industry and
is one of the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-
Hsiung is responsible for formulating our overall corporate strategy.
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan
Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid
Manufacturers Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 64, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
YANG, Cheng had approximately 43 years’ working experience in the
MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our
business development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Vedan Culture and
Education Foundation, the commissioner of Industrial Development
and Investment Promotion Committee of Taichung City, the Executive
director of New Taiyuan Urban Development Association and the
supervisor of Taichung Culture & Education Foundation. Mr. YANG,
Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in the PRC
in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 61, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from
Meiji University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in
the development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam since
1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and President of
Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 32 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 55, an Executive Director and a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 25
years' working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen
is responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from
Waseda University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 59, an Executive Director. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Chou had approximately 37 years’ working experience in the food,
beverage and consumer products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is
a director and Vice President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai) and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Chou also holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28
June 2006.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SREEERLAMEEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 65, a Non-executive Director, member of
the Remuneration Committee and Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. HUANG is
also the Vice President of Taiwan Vedan. Mr. HUANG graduated from
the department of accounting and statistics of the National Taichung
Commercial College, Taiwan in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately
41 years' experience in administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 58, a Non-executive Director. Mr. CHOU is
the Supervisor of Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Shin-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder
member of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant
of Wincome Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics
Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation). He has over 26 years of experience in the legal industry.
Mr. CHOU obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow
University, Master of Law degree from East China University of
Political Science and Law and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking
University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 57, an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. CHAO
obtained a bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in
law from Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree
in law from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an
executive partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr.
CHAO is also a director of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly
known as Fui Industrial Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June
2013) and the Independent Non-executive Director of Force-MOS
Technology Co., Ltd (an emerging-stock company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHAO has approximately 29 years’
experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 58, an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee,
as well as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. KO
graduated with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia
University, Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science
Degree in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr.
KO has been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs
& Co., Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO
is also the Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
Mr. KO is currently a director of Taichung Season Arts Education
Foundation, Taiwan.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SREEERLAAMEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 59, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State University, and
a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan University. Mr. CHEN
is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation and also a supervisor of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd.,
the Independent Non-executive Director of Kayee International
Group Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation) and Vectorite Biomedical Inc. (an emerging-
stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr.
Chen has more than 31 years of experience in securities business in
Taiwan and was the Vice Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta
Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord
Capital Management Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord
Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong, aged 63, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Huang holds
a bachelor’s degree in electrophysics and a master's degree in
management science from National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.
Mr. Huang is currently a technical expert in the rank of adjunct
associate professor at the department of transportation & logistics
management of National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. He is also
the president of Citpo Technologies Inc.

Mr. Huang was the founder secretary general of Chinese Professional
Management Association of Hsinchu, Taiwan from 1994 to 1995 and
was the first president of Weblink International Inc. responsible for
its establishment from 1996 to 2000. Mr. Huang was the chairman
of Provision International Inc. from 1999 to 2000. Mr. Huang was
the first president of Lottery Technology Service Corporation from
2001 to 2007 and was the vice president of Quality Assurance, ITGO,
Acer Inc. from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Huang then served a second term
as president of Weblink International Inc., assisting in developing
new businesses from 2010 to 2011. He was the chairman of Ecom
Software Inc. from 2010 to 2013 and an adjunct assistant professor
in the Department of Industrial Engineering and Management of
National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan from 2011 to 2013. He was
the president of Taiwan Regional Operations of Acer Inc. from 2014
to 2016.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SREEERLAMEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 53, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
the Executive Vice President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice
President, is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon, major in finance and
marketing, and holds a master degree in business administration
from Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993,
and was the senior manager of financial department, vice manager
of business and foreign trade department of Vedan Vietnam, special
assistant to the chairman, project manager of finance department of
Taiwan Vedan as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch.
Mr. NI has full qualification in finance, marketing and executive
administration, and has accumulated approximately 26 years of
working experience.

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 68, Chief Strategy Officer of Vedan
Vietnam. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the National Cheng Kung
University, major in accounting and finance. Mr. HSIEH is responsible
for the strategic development and functions of the Group. Mr. HSIEH
has approximately 39 years of finance management and banking
experience. Mr. HSIEH was financial vice president of Vedan Vietnam
and worked for several financial institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam
including International Bank of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr.
HSIEH was also a general manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh
City Branch. Prior to joining us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in
Gia Hen International Co., Ltd.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 55, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 29 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. HUANG, Chih-Yuan, 68, Vice President of food and amino
acid business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing and management functions of the company's amino
acid product business. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Tainan
Commercial Vocational Senior High School. Mr. HUANG joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1988 as business supervisor, and joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1993 as the senior manager of food and amino acid
business department. Mr. HUANG also served as the head of business
department of Ve Wong Corporation, and has over 31 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.
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EX SREEERLAAMEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 57, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’s
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 28 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 56, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 30 years
of working experience in finance and administration.

Mr. ZHUANG, Kuixing, 51, General Manager of the Group in
Chinese mainland region. Mr. ZHUANG graduated from Zhi-Ren
School of General Education. He joined Vedan Taiwan in 1997
and had acted as Manager of the Consumer Goods Division and
Assistant Vice President to the Agent Products Division successively.
Mr. ZHUANG has rich agency sales experience in international brands
such as Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor, SPEY Whiskey, Gekkeikan Sake, and
Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds. Mr. ZHUANG has over 23 years’
profound sales, operational, and management experience in the food
industry.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SREEERLAMEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 45, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 18 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 43, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and Investor
Services. Ms. WONG has over 20 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field and has been providing professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational,
private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a Chartered Secretary
and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries ("HKICS"”) and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (“ICSA") in the United Kingdom. Ms. Wong is a holder
of the Practitioner's Endorsement from HKICS. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor Services Limited as external service provider and
appointed Ms. WONG as the Company’s company secretary since 1
April 2012.)
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The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company’s effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2018, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED") and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").
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ERELRE

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and at
most of the time met the requirement of having sufficient number of
INEDs representing one-third of the Board. None of the INEDs has any
business or financial interests with the Group nor has any relationship
with other directors and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed
under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 30.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’'s primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group's expense in carrying out their functions.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the then Listing
Rules. The relevant terms of reference was revised on 25 December
2018 to comply with the existing Listing Rule. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-
Ray and Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong, all Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2018 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Senior Management remuneration by band are set out in Note 30 to
the accounts.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and high-
leveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.
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The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal ZAEBERBRERENPERFDHE FED
controls of the Group are summarised as follows: ™

. Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks e MBEERMEARRERE —SBRENANNE

through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.

ZEEMEENRIBERE  ERAERRER
K75 e e A F R R AE TER AR R R -
EHFF TS ESNKN  EREEMRIT
ME BEHEEQAESHE-

HEMFRBREE -EBHEXKAR]
B BE EX WHHERRERERRF
ZEEHT EREKRBREERE-

RERNREREE -tHHERER.
FELEE HE EEmERBRIERE
BRIE HAENRIEEHRSEEREFE
TTAREER BREBRKAHR AT

RERREE-SERBREFZZE
g BEFLETRAREARBHER
o ERRERERR -

BMEREE-#FAREMEERRRE
2 EEANEEREALE RBHER
EEREABMNEEEEEM-

A BRLMMBERREE-SBEBH
BEMFMEZEZEZBERAE HRNSEZ
W ERBE OERAUDNFR EFN B
BREMEZMERSHBER BHAK
Bl Rk ARRE BRRERRER -
WHEEETES -

Annual Report 2018 £3% 41



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

Environmental protection management for production cycle:
Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute,
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in
order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

Occupational safety and hygiene management for production
cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents;
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate
improvement measures.

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group

FERRZRAREEE KEBEZERE
EHERER FEZARBREREH
FE WHRBEEMGE W17 BEERE
B RRIRREE I ABRERR RE
MEE-

AERRIWER R HAEE YRR
BREFNZBERERTRN DA
B - 3 B SR BRI A PR A P TR R B HE 5 -

AEBBHERETHEABER2018FEEBEERB

stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2018 are as follows: i/

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EERE REEB EBRY

2018/03/24 Cashier Management Measure on Cash Receipts and Payments, 2
Borrowings and Debt Collection
HWR W E  ERREREEIDA

2018/06/30 Introduction to the New Requirements of Legal Provisions 2
MHERIGESUR R TE

2018/08/25 Management Measure on Credit Limit for Clients 2
BEFREHEEERIE

2018/10/20 Update on the Relevant Requirements as Revised under the 2018 4
Vietnam Tax Law
S HT20184F ME BUEPTE SR BV R E

2018/11/24 Update on Cost Calculation System and Management Work 2

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group

RAGHE R B IR

AREBTEBETHEAER2018FEEBEERB

stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2018 are as follows: i/

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EEREE REER EEEH

2018/04/03 Explanation on the Reduction of 5.1 Value-added Tax Rate 2
5. 13518 B A0 R PR AR AR B

2018/06/20-22 Continuous Education on Accounting in Songjiang District 24
MNIRGHEERE

2018/06/22-29 Continuous Education on Accounting in Xiamen District 48
EfmREgtEgERE

2018/08/31 Training on Knowledge of Taxation 4

B A B
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the resources on accounting and financial reporting functions of the
Company, the qualification and experience of staff members and
the training programmes participated by the staff members and the
relevant budgets. The Group will, from time to time, review its risk
management and internal control system in order to optimise its
effectiveness and in turn heighten the overall corporate governance
standard of the Group.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

REEFERN  2BEFCBHANEBAEDZES
RO BEAL R E R RIS E R
HHNER BTEERER URBTIMERH
B REES - KRES TR RREIE R
NEEZERS EEEMEERTH  URFAE
EEBEEXERKF-

EWHEICs

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HER/EERH
Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Annual General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ezg Bt Z88 yHzEe R%ZEE RRAEXE
Executive Directors HiTES
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) GBIk (LE) 4/4 NATE NATE B 10 01
YANG, Cheng 5 24 NATE B N/AT i R N/ATE B 0/1
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CFO) GE (7TR#%) 4/4 NAT @ NATE NATE 111
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 414 NATER NAT R NATER 0/
YANG, Kun-Chou Bl 3/4 NATER NAT R NATE R 0
Non-executive Directors FUTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BER 4/4 NAZT B 17 NATER 11
CHOU, Szu-Cheng A%E 444 N/ATE R N/ATE B N/ATE A o
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong BER 414 i 10 0 0
KO, Jim-Chen ik 4/4 11 17 111 /1
CHEN, Joen-Ray IR I 4/4 212 0/1 0/1 0/1
HSIEH, Lung-Fa (resigned with effect g% (BER-ZT—-N\&E
from 23 July 2018) tAZT=RER) 22 0/1 N/AT & NATE A 0
HUANG, Chung-Fong (appointed FERERAN-E-N\F
with effect from 22 October 2018)  +A-+=HAERN) 17N N/AT i A N/AT i A N/ATE A N/ATE B
Notes: B 5

Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to exercise the voting
right on the third and fourth board meeting. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou authorized
Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang to exercise the voting right on the fourth board
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to the company secretary.

BELAEREGBRBREERE=RENAEESSH
TTERIRYE - B 5 ERES IR R ENEMRE
EZEERTERRE-

EEEA

g (BERERTAD HSTRIEIA.6.5(% KRR
ERESHNAEBNERREIRZREETEN
EHEAMNEERXEUNERTEMENZR
e

EREFCAQAANERHEARBE_Z N
FTZA=T—HFEANNFILEE-
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COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 TO LISTING RULES

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with
the exception of code provision E.1.2.

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung (the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2018 due
to business commitments.

RULE 3.10A

Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules requires an issuer to appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the board. During the reporting period, there was some time the
Company has not complied with such requirement.

From 23 July 2018, when the resignation of Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa as
an independent non-executive director of the Company became
effective, the number of independent non-executive directors of the
Company fell below one-third of the Board and the Company was
not in compliance with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

From 22 October 2018, after the appointment of Mr. Huang, Chung-
Fong as an independent non-executive director of the Company
became effective, the Company has four independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board and met the
requirement of Rule 3.10(A) of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr.
CHAO, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and Mr. CHOU,
Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, Mr. HSIEH, Lung-
Fa (resigned with effect from 23 July 2018) and Mr. HUANG, Chung-
Fong (appointed with effect from 22 October 2018) were appointed
for a term of 3 years. Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company is subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$345,000
and US$4,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company'’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2018. The reporting responsibilities of the independent auditor of the
Company on the financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 108 to 114.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FRITESE
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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RE - #HEREREHE

INTRODUCTION

At the end of 2018, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC) of the United Nations published a special report on Global
Warming 1.5°C which clearly analyses the gap between global
warming of 1.5°C and 2°C, and strictly emphasises that the world
must take decisive actions and drastically cut carbon emissions in the
next 10 years, otherwise climate change will be out of control and
on the irreversible path from greenhouse effect towards Hothouse
Earth — humans and all species will face severe challenges. Against
such a backdrop, every resident of the global village should shoulder
the responsibility of a climate leader and proactively carry out carbon
reduction efforts, striving to respond to the urgent call — slow global
temperature rise.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to such issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee” which includes the operation directors of
all production bases. The committee members practically promote
environmental education with combination of regional production
and sales strategy and the concept of environmental protection
and earth preservation and implements sustainable environment
plans with regular meetings to review the achievements under the
respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully discloses the
implementation of CSR. We will implement the corporate governance
policy in accordance with the laws and strive to achieve the most
outstanding operating efficiency of the Group with an aim to realise
mutual benefit with the environment.

5lE

F018F K HARBFHEREEZIEMEZE
SHRRT (BHEM 5 CFRIRE) - 5P
AR5 CEAR2 CHZERE - B &
ERAZHRESEI0FRNMBARBURETTE - X
TREIR AR BERR - TRIRREBRIE  REWEE

PEELEIPN IR Sy

EoAl RPN E —LEREES
THREEREREGNET BRERFARRTE
RBEZREAFARNEZBBERME -

KABEREBRERBREENRN -8 RHH
BRIZNRIGEEEZE BUBBRTHHR
HRE HRERI BN ARES -ZF
KoEEETELEEAMBERANBEREELER
AERBBRBRBERERATREE AN A
FBEETHTE TR BARREENEBE
BEHE RBHRABRERBERLIE BEHA
BREefBE EHNERCELFEENL2EE
B HIZURMAERNEREZE S HHEMIRE
REFEHARER -

RABRREERRY [CEXEHEREEREE] %
EENEBEREEAMNEETES ZEIN
BEREHRKESRROETHIRNIES - A58
HEIREHE  REKERRERNFE LT
Hed N en SRERERY - EARET  £E

HINERECSRIEB RN RABKBESER
NREDEEBE FHRBRBHKHERT AlES
B e ER

Annual Report 2018 £38 47



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HEREREE

To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

REFKBERENED  PEL SR THKAER
SEME BRTHEIRRRE ERHEHEZ
SR EREHDFDAEERRER RHE
T EAR2REESUARNDERBE NN ITHER
BOUREBT TP fER REARMERE
BER OGN BPAEEHESBRIFR
ENEEEL DBEHENEE BREBELAR
WHRBERERERANIE

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in Factory Areas with
Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology
FEEEREN - UEBREETIRARL REEEREBRERE

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the purposes of general disclosure responsibilities. The period and
areas covered by this report are as follows:

AREFKBEBEBBEZZ M LR BK &
ZirEl GREE - e RERWmEESD) RN
B (RRERTAD 2RAUEIT-REESR
F-ARERERERBBLT

Period covered
R 2 B

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
FIT2018F1 51H£E2018F12A31H

Areas covered

2 S covered by Vedan International Group

The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of branches in Taiwan

RAT BRI EERE M P RAEERI R ESED QR EEE
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{ENVIRONMENT)
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting
park-like construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

° Employee safety, environmental protection and resources
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission of
exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or over-
achieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws of
the places where its production bases are located and the
requirements of internal standards.

o The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

° In 2018, the emission standard of each emission of the
Group was in line with the requirement of environmental
impact assessment for all production bases. The Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) reformed
the concentration system in production plants in 2018
for the purpose of reducing the consumption of steam
energy. In addition, the newly constructed sewage
denitrification processing system is also expected to
effectively reduce the volume of wastewater and sludge
to be generated.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BIERE

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KEKLE (&)

(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHRYEB-ZBHIRLEK BRERESE
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued) Yz BERR (48)
. According to the statistics, the types of emissions . KRt 2018 ETEHEAEBRE

produced in the production process of the primary plants
in 2018 and the relevant data are set out below:

ZHMBREREES M

2017 2018 Difference Unit

Type of emissions HHMER —E-tfF —E-N\F R B

Total volume of wastewater BEkaE HFBKE (i *) 6.35 5.06 (20.31%) mé/ton
discharged (mé)/product output JERES (D) VB VN
(ton)

Wastewater — Chemical Oxygen FEK—{LEEEE(COD) (AFT) 9.07 8.23 (9.26%) kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product JEREE (D) NN
output (ton)

Air emission - Sulphur oxides (SOX) TR -FHEMSOx (RF) 2.15 1.40 (34.88%) kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) JERES (D) NN

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides (NOX) | Z= &I — ﬁhﬁft%NOx (&) 0.11 0.19 72.73% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) JERES (D) NN

Total greenhouse gas emission BEREE EFE&E 837,226.80 833,145.11 (0.49%) ton COze

AWECOze

Total emission intensity of BERBBENE 1.51 1.26 (16.56%) | ton CO:e/ton

greenhouse gas ABECOe
/B

Total hazardous waste BEREYEE 83,788 138,518 65.32% kg fT

Total non-hazardous waste BEEEVEE 38,236,805 41,297,140 8.00% kgAfT

Hazardous waste intensity BEBEENEE 0.15 0.21 40.00% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) (BDF/PEERES) NN ]

Non-hazardous waste intensity BEREENEE 69.16 62.22 (10.03%) kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) (BDF/PEERES) NN
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BIREE
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KELE (&)
(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHRYEB-ZBHORLEK BREEE

wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued) Yz BERR (&)
Explanations on major differences in 2018 as compared to 2018 FHB2017F 2 T EERFH
2017:
Difference
Type of emissions BHWEER %8 | Explanation on difference EEHH
Total volume of wastewater BKEERE (LhK)/ (20.31%) | Increase in output of major products: TEEREEEN:
discharged (m?)/product output EREE (RH) 2017: 383,374.67 TON 20174 :383,374.67 TON
(ton) 2018: 485,744.33 TON 2018 : 485,744.33 TON

To improve all sewage collection systems of | AR E2 D75 kKERG[F
the Company [Note 1].

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BK-{Lt2ZE=(COD) (9.26%) | Increase in output of major products: FTEEQESEM:
Demand (COD) (kg)/product (BF)/EREE (2 2017: 383,374.67 TON 20174 :383,374.67 TON
output (ton) iy 2018: 485,744.33 TON 20184 : 485,744.33 TON

To improve all sewage collection systems of | BEE2 A2 5 kMEZRE] -
the Company [Note 2].

Air emission - Sulphur oxides (SOx) | % Rk R —Fi & /LS50 (34.88%) | Increase in output of major products: TEERESEM: (ZME69%ER
(kg)/product output (ton) (BF)/EREE(D (Increased product output by 16.69%), E2) ) &2018¢¥iﬁi/§\JSOx/&Fﬁ
W) and the average measurement of SOx BTR SR S BEMSOEME -

concentration in 2018 was slightly reduced,
hence SOx emission per unit was decreased.

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides ZRIN - IINOX (2 72.73% | Increase in output of major products: FTEERESEM: (ZME69%ER
(NOX) (kg)/product output (ton) ) /EREEZ (RE) (Increased product output by 16.69%), but | EZ) B2018FFHEEINOKEE S L
an upward trend of NOx concentration was | FHiB%  HUE MEERNOKEHE «

found in the average measurement in 2018,
hence NOx emission per unit was increased.

Total hazardous waste BERENES 65.32% | During the annual maintenance in 2018, EZO18¢UT¢W’E ER FEASH
approximately 65 tons of heavy oil slag K1)600KLI T .2 E 8 - 41650 «
were cleared in the 600KL tank of a thermal (&ti?ﬂa?ﬁ&?ﬁzoﬂ EER-R-R
power plant (K1). BN EERENREREY-)
(Such heavy oil slag has only been cleaned | &2 22018F07 A & 4 265
once for nearly the past 20 years. Such ERE 20188 FER2017ER D
hazardous waste will not be generated 12.87% °

again in the short term.)

If the 65-ton heavy oil slag generated in July
2018 is excluded, the whole year of 2018
decreased by 12.87% compared to 2017.

Total non-hazardous waste BEZERYVEE 8.00% | During the annual maintenance in 2018, H0IBFENFEEEE SERER
approximately 65 tons of heavy oil slag (K1)600KLB R 2 B 8 - g5
were cleared in the 600KL tank of a thermal (&tﬁ?ﬁiﬁ&%ﬁw@ﬁ BEE-RR
power plant (K1). HINTEBRENBEREN )
(Such heavy ol slag has only been cleaned | & 2 22018507 A & 4 2 650
once for nearly the past 20 years. Such BHE 2018 FER017TFH D
hazardous waste will not be generated 12.87% °
again in the short term.) 1. EBM0185 BREHAE AE
If the 65-ton heavy oil slag generated in July BoRBABNERERRD ERE
2018 is excluded, the whole year of 2018 ERENEEEN.
decreased by 12.87% compared to 2017. 2. ﬁtﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁu MEME10-158F
1. Major works in 2018 were cleaning of E—-Re

raw material tank where the sediment 3 ERH G ERIB % ERIK
and coal ash accumulated at the bottom ol %ﬁﬁm%iﬁ@ZFﬂ EREF
over a long time, resulting in an increase Bo

of total non-hazardous waste.

2. The clearance of the sediment at the
bottom of the raw material tank is made
once around every 10-15 years.

3. After completing the “non-burnt brick
factory”, the coal ash will be used as a
raw material for the non-burnt bricks
and hence resources will be reused.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

[Note 1] and [Note 2]: With the aim of achieving sound sewage
collection systems of the Company, it has been re-examining the
discharged water with issues since 2018 by a complete collection
and return to a sewage treatment system for treatment, resulting in
an increase in low-concentration sewage (large amount while low
COD value). Therefore, the two indicators, namely total volume of
wastewater discharged (m?)/product output (ton), and chemical oxygen
demand (COD) (kg)/product output (ton), were failed to show a
downward trend from the figures in 2018, among which:

a. Discharged water from open-air wet powder storage yard: Due to
rainy seasons, although the wet powder is covered with canvas, it
is washed away when the rainfall is heavy and mixing with some
sediments, causing such powder cannot be recycled nor directly
be discharged into the environment. Therefore, the Company
discharged such powder into the sewage treatment system for
treatment, resulting in an increased load to the system;

b. The shaft seal cooling water with issues in each factory: The
shaft seal cooling water is used for external cooling pump, and
will generally be directly discharged into the environment after
cooling. However, significant portion of the current equipment
of the Company are relatively outmoded. The cooling water after
use is currently being collected and discharged into the sewage
treatment plant for treatment so as to ensure that it will not be
polluting the environment, also resulting in an increased load to
the system;

C. Cleaning water and rainwater around cement plant: Due to the
working environment, the cement plant will generate a little dust,
including dust of high concentration (within the factory) made
by transportation equipment. The recycling equipment is now
improved, but part of dust of low concentration may be washed
away by rainwater, causing pollution issues when flowing into the
surrounding environment of the plant. At present, sewage with
issues will all be recycled to the sewage treatment plant, and the
system will also be loaded;

d. Domestic sewage of each factory, including the cleaning (shower)
and sanitary (septic tank) sewage systems: In 2018, the Company
made an overall statistical study of domestic wastewater from the
production plant. Sewage generated by the cleaning and sanitary
of the plant will all go into the sewage treatment system, causing
an addition to the system.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

BIR&RE
BR-EERE KELYE (H)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy 2 ERFEAEE-EBHHERE EREW
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BH A
resources

The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
Energy Management Committee which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalise
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

In 2018, the Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) improved the concentration system in the
production process in production plants and reduced
the use of steam energy while also reducing water
consumption for cooling down.

The Group proactively implement the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in
the concentration process of production and reuse the
same in the production process. In 2018, 1.48KL of
condensation can be recycled for every ton of products,
representing approximately 23.5% of the water
consumed in such production process.

In 2018, the packaging materials used by the primary
production bases of the Group in the production process
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper
bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2018, the recycling
rate reached 78.2%.

& BT 8 8 # 73R K (Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle)  &IRE W AHA -
NEBOR DY ERFEREZ BEY -

R RBBOREE  REHRER
WIEHRBERZHE -

S B TTISO 5000188 R EIE X4
EX2HEEEMBYRRERESE -
WK REBEZE®  AENAR
BEERANETESERE  UHE
ARG SRR - I E e &0 L R A 5T
g fREFEE A B - FRIEEEIRAA

o

4

2018 F &£ B £ B A EE iR Rt
HEERNORIRRERGETHES
PR TEERIE R - R rR AR Al
KERE-

EEEGETERRKBRBZK
KOBEERRBIEPIIEL 2R
K EIREIREFFER - 2018F THE
) oo Al B Y A (5 1 .48KL /2
K HEZ B ERKZ23.5% °

018FEMEITMENEETER
BEMEAREMEIAIS BAZEE -
e M PBRRE - AR HRE
& AT 2 B Bk B FI B A -
ERE TR REFE Y
BiEETRRBFA  2018F FaT
2B EEET82% °
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BREE

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KEKLE (&)

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy 2 EREREE-EDEHEHE EREWK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BRA &)

resources (continued)

e The total consumption of energy used in the primary o 018 X EAEEMARTALHE
production bases in 2018 is as follows: ST
2017 2018 Difference Unit

Types of usage ERESR “E-tF —E-N\f R B

Indirect energy — Unit consumption HZER-ENELRE 808.63 699.73 (13.47%) kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BNERE (TRNE)/ TR,/
consumption (kWh)/production EnES (/) N
output (ton))

Indirect energy — Unit consumption of | &R — £ EMEE 1 me 85.97 76.47 (11.05%) kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (& EJ@W%@%; )/ NN ]
(kgW/production output (ton)) EmES (1))

Direct energy - Unit consumption of | EE#F-EREMNEE 461.49 418.32 (9.35%) kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (EreEme ( NSV NN
production output (ton)) EmEE (RH))

Total water consumption BREKE 7,598,055 8,205,465 7.99% m? 3k

Water consumption intensity (total FRZE 13.74 12.36 (10.04%) mé/ton
water consumption (@FEKE (IFX)/ vl R N
(m?)/production output (ton)) EMEE (DQH))

Total packaging materials used FRONBENHEE - AR 55,722 54,146 (2.83%) kg AT
- FIBC bags

Total packaging materials used FROEXMHNEE MK 387,799 436,027 12.44% kg AT
- Paper bags

Total packaging materials used FROEXMNEE-HE 3,938,692 4,099,035 4.07% kg AT
- Carton boxes

Total packaging materials used FREBENHEE-BBR 507,944 577,887 13.77% kg AT
- Plastic cylinders

Intensity of packaging materials used | R BENHEE -KEE 5.23 5.06 (3.25%) kg/ton
— FIBC bags TN

Intensity of packaging materials used | (ERABENHEE - KK 9.29 10.25 10.33% kg/ton
- Paper bags NN

Intensity of packaging materials used | AR BENHEE —HHE 70.30 70.34 0.06% kg/ton
- Carton boxes NN

Intensity of packaging materials used | {EFR M BENHEE - BB 40.68 40.64 (0.10%) kg/ton
~ Plastic cylinders NN
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RIR -#HERER

|E

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management — Promoting energy
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2018 as compared to

BIR&RE
BE EER

5KEEE (#E)

(2) ERFEAEE-HEBHRRE BREWKW

BRA(#)

2018F HE2017F 2 F 2 ZEFHH

2017:
Difference

Types of usage EREER #8 | Explanation on difference EEHH

Indirect energy - unit consumption | FEE&E-ENENFRE (13.47%) | 1. Increase in output of major products: | 1. TEERESEM: (M16.69%E
of electricity (total electricity (@j}i@)ﬁ;ﬁﬂ ) (Increased by 16.69% for product MEE ENMIANEELRE) -
consumption (KWh)/production /EREE (D)) output, whereas increased by 4.64% for | 2. BARHERENEREZ AN
output (ton)) total electricity consumption). WA RISO 50001% E SEER L8

. The reasonableness of energy unit RER-
consumption is reviewed on a monthly
basis and the energy baseline for each
product is formulated in accordance with
150 50001.

Indirect energy - unit consumption | R EER—EEMB £ (11.05%) | 1. Increase in output of major products: | 1. T BERESHEM: (% 10116.69%
of biofuel (total biofuel E(E %‘ﬁ"’* %@}ﬂ;(” (Increased by 16.69% for product EREE R BREERNEH
consumption (kg)/production ) /EREE(2IE)) output, whereas decreased by 3.13% for ) FREGEEMHELRE-
output (ton)) total biofuel consumption) to reduce unit | 2. AR EREMEREZAEHE

consumption of biofuel. TWHERISO 500015 T BBER 28
. The reasonableness of energy unit RER-

consumption is reviewed on a monthly

basis and the energy baseline for each

product is formulated in accordance with

150 50001.

Direct energy - unit consumption | ER&E-BREMRE (9.35%) | 1. Increase in output of major products: | 1. TEERESEM: (#E116.69%E
of coal (total coal consumption (BrieBgeg (Rr)/ (Increased by 16.69% for product MEE EMSNERBEE) -
(kg)/production output (ton)) EREE(RE)) output, whereas increased by 8.8% for | 2. #ARFERENREEZARE.

total coal consumption). TWHERISO 50001 T BBER 28
. The reasonableness of energy unit RERK-
consumption is reviewed on a monthly
basis and the energy baseline for each
product is formulated in accordance with
150 50001.
Total water consumption BEkE 7.99% | 1. Due to an increase in product output | 1. FERESEN(16.69%) kL&

(16.69%), the total water consumption
increased. The raw water consumption in
2017 & 2018 are as follows:

2017: 7,598,055 M?

2018: 8,205,465 M

. A water balance map is prepared

on a monthly basis to analyse the
reasonableness of water consumption/
sewage discharge/recycled water volume
in order to ensure no abnormal events
would occur.

KEEM T315201782018F Rk
ke
20174 17,598,055 M
20184 : 8,205,465 M?

2. FAMEATEE YAMEKE/
BkBERE /BUKESAEY I
BREZFEHEE.
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RE - HEREREE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3)

Environment and natural resources management -
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring for
environment and protecting natural ecosystem

In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the
ISO 50001 energy management system certificate in
October 2016. We established an impeccable equipment
maintenance and examination system through a high-
standard certification inspection. The usage of energy
consuming equipment has been gradually optimised,
which facilitated reasonableness and efficiency of energy
consuming equipment and reduced energy costs.

Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education.

Since 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has planned to use non-burnt bricks
equipment which recycled coal ash in electrical boilers
into non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials.
Being in line with the national development policy, it
reused and recycled waste and used such equipment
and technical skills to enhance reuse of resources,
which conserved energy and reduced consumption and
brought significant meanings to earth preservation. This
equipment will commence operation at the end of 2019.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited A BEIER (£5) R 27

BIRGEE

BR - EBERE KELYE (&)

(3) BERRREREE-RARREAR
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION RBIERE
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation BR: BERE KELYE (FA)

(continued)

(3)

Environment and natural resources management - B) BERXAEREE-RAREREAXN
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring R-EERBREARER (H)

for environment and protecting natural ecosystem

(continued)

In 2018, the primary production bases of the Group . 2018F BT ERERBWIREL
organised a total of 75 training courses in relation to R ENEBHEIIRRIZRETT55
environmental safety and hygiene with 4,629 participants W2 IMANIRBLE29AN  FHEA L
and the average training hours were 8.36 hours per REFHAS.36/\E,F ERERR
person every year. The contents of the courses are e

summarised as follows:

No. Course Name
IR REER
1 Groups 1 ~ 6 Training Targets about Labour Safety under National Requirements
BRERKZEBREI~6HIRER
2 Industrial Safety Management and Practice for Foreign Workers
INEBRBIELRTEIRRER
3 Learning ISO/OHSAS Environmental Management System, Occupational Safety and
Hygiene Management System/Internal Inspector
ISO/OHSASIR IR BB R4 BMELXAFEEBRRGRHM NHEZE
4 Chemical Drugs Safety Course
TEEMT2RIE
5 Waste Management and Resources Recycle Course
FEEMER  BIREWERE
6 Safety of Gas Welder and Electric Welder
RE - BREEZE
7 Operation Safety of Loading Equipment and Stacking Machine
PHRE EERETEE
8 Electricity Safety
REZs®
9 Operation in Dust Area
) BE & 15 1F 25
10 Safety Training for Operation in Limited Space and Overhead Operation
ZRIRERREBMEERSEIEE
11 Stacker Driving License Training
HE = W B SR TR I AR
Total Total training hours Total participation Average training hours
for the year of employees
&% 2 FHE IR BB EANR BT FHZIEH
39,718 (hours) 4,629 (persons) 8.36 (hours/year)
39,718(/NEF) 4,629(N) 8.36( /N 4F)
Note: In 2018, the average training hours on courses in relation B 2018 BN B I FHESRLE
to environmental safety and hygiene for each employee H B D R BUEER201 75 R AR
increased by nearly 13% as compared to 2017, mainly 13% FEEREMBEET XL
attributable to an increase in labour and industrial safety B HESRBRIRERE

management, stacker driving training and other courses.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

BUK:

(4) Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement (4)
The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the
Group) implements the Environmental Management
System (ISO 14001), Occupation Health Safety
Management System (OHSAS 18001) and Energy
Management System (ISO 50001) every year, and
regularly reviews the progress and effectiveness of all
plans and proactively improves the deficiencies in order

to continuously improve and govern with high-standard
international regulations and conduct self-reflection.

In 2018, in respect of all laws related to environmental
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.

In 2018, the external inspection and environmental
examination in respect of environmental safety and

BIRGEE

EFERE KEKLE (H)

IR BELREERNE

EETEAEEWBENRESFEE
M TIRIBE IR RSO 14001)" B
¥R EEEIE XL (OHSAS 18001)
HERERE IR Z A5 (1SO 50001) iF HARE
ZEIBETZEE RITR A WiER
WEMRK - FEUCE S EEEER

SERIL B HARR -

2018F S BT EIRRIEEEZEZ LR

&/\/\
R Bk EEDS EHA
EAEEEN Y BRI

2018 F T BEAEHMREL2HE
KB TR N EDFE i B IR IR OB AR 5T 0

hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are ™~
as follows:
No. Name Result
IR =x ®ER
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
£-ZRERY N
2 Annual External Inspection (ISO 14001&0HSAS 18001) Pass
FEHMEFTEAZ (SO 14001&0OHSAS 18001) ik
3 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
B_FRERA CXid
4 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
B=FRERA i
5 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Pass
FE I EBFEAZ (SO 50001) i
6 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FOERE RO i
Note: The Group's production bases in China and business Hi- SETERRESEEERT 2

footholds in Taiwan are principally engaged in sales
and light industry trade. The primary production base
of the Group is the Vietnam plant and therefore the
environmental emission and energy data disclosed in this
report mainly concern the Vietnam plant.
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RE - #HEREREHE

{SOCIETY)
EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the
goal of “building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’
benefits” through three measures, namely “full compliance with the
labour laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness
of the working environment and proactive implementation of
employees’ training and communication”, which help build a sound
labour-employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the
Group and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.

(it &)
RIFHAERR
BE BUGCENE BESTER

AEEEBER IHERET FERETHE
HEROES URFSEIER AEEXFH
RETRAERE YK [HEETEEHES
FERTZERENITIERE BREEE TR
FIEEE] =D EARER [(REMAEIEERT
BN ZBER BYRHFNSELHHEE /K
Bt EERAERANFE -

REBE A NITAT B TREBEE

(1) EREM-2FzBEFRERSKAGEZ
e

e EKBRENRBETIAREENAERH
BEBTUENER  FEERR/R
A REE-ER &7 Hilk#
BE SRENNIGEESR -8B TE
E1& - FBEHAR ZRIBY - AEERE
I RH BB -MHNEBRRESD
bz AR - A EREE FHAH
I BB IR -

s EKBERMETERLEEEMZERY
xS WERBRITHMGIE XK
EMEEMAEN 2 TEMBETR
e
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RIBE -HEREABRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

RIFHAERA
BE BULEME BESTERN (F)

(1) Employment principles — Fair employment conditions, 1) ERERI-AFzEEKHFHEERAEZ
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued) MM ()

. In 2018, the Group had 3,845 employees in aggregate. . 20185 £ B 8 T8 2 $£3,84507 » A
The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and THREMER = B 5 A WHE
geographic region is set out below: HEB8RALE:

Total number

of employees

Male in Female in in each region

The Group’s primary base each region each region EEBET

EEXEEN EBEET EBRZET By

The Vietnam plant i % & 3,007 639 3,646

The China plant / Bl J& [& 118 66 184

Foothold in Taiwan & &1 2 8 7 15
Total average Total average

resignation resignation Total average

rate of male rate of female resignation

staff per month | staff per month | rate per month

58I ZETI | of each district

The Group’s primary base AEERE ABRE EEAERE

The Vietnam plant 8 & & 1.37% 0.33% 1.7%

The China plant # B9 & [& 1.46% 1.25% 2.71%

Foothold in Taiwan & /&5 2 0.92% 0.00% 0.92%

(2) Employees’ benefits — Enhancing benefits and good 2 BIRF-RABFERIIFHIEGRYE

working conditions

SEERMETIEFZLHARA
& BT EHBUNER AT ER
FIEEEME BURBER 2L
BREHTE -

° The Group attaches importance to gender equality °
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

SEGIERBRE T2 EEEMH
kT ERR  SHHRESHRRERR
ERXETEEREINER-

o The Group has formulated relevant regulations which °
provide workers based at the primary production
bases in Vietnam and China with benefits, such as free
food, clothing, housing, transportation, education,
entertainment and training.
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RE - #HEREREHE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

(3)

Employees’ benefits — Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions (continued)

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. All are implemented in accordance
with local laws and regulations of each operating
location.

In 2018, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment twice a
year in order to encourage the talents to excel themselves
with a friendly management approach. In addition, the
overall salaries of all staff were raised in 2018 as in line
with the basic wage adjustments in Vietnam.

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT BIEHAERET

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ HH: BUME£ME -HESTHEF (&)
Benefits (continued)

(3) Labour communication — Strengthening communication B) LEEBBE-MHRBBEE ERARE
channels and valuing human rights (continued) (#&)

. The Group has reported its internal regulations to . SEHEFEEMBRBERRERR
the competent authorities in the countries where its NEIAE  ARAIE JEBABH
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has FEEBEM T RERK BRI [
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee” ZEg | UBERAHAXNEEQR
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant NHE T2 EH -

competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

o The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The . SEEEE TR FTEFAEEWY
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group) has FEARERIE B Et BE B
coordinated with international or local review institutions EHEBES e THAHER
to regularly carry out audits and collect employees’ HMECER REEILZHEEEZ-

opinions on labour management and relevant issues in
order to protect the relevant interests of the employees.

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment (4) EBRZ2HEHEREANIERRE-ARRE:

- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’ TERE

healthiness

o Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company's safety . SEARERALZE 2BEEIN
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places B URBELZE2HESTERMNE
significant importance on the promotion of occupational BRFBRERAREEEREEHHE
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in RAeEEES REL TP #&H
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local FREEABEER RN IIERE -
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

. The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance . SEABNEIZRFTAEERY
applicable to the local operating area to each employee EHERNS TIRRSEERERRE A
and arranges regular health check for the employees in BEXEETI SRR  WEHE
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health BEITHREFERSE RN EEDK
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with B EEEM R HEEHLE
professional medical institutions to find out whether an BEEE AEEMETBEBER
employee suffers from an occupational disease based Pl BB TIERIEH-

on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

RIFHARR
BE BULEME BESTERN (&)

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment (4) EBRZ2HEHEERENIFRE-Q2IRD
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’ >ERE (&)
healthiness (continued)

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept
of environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in
addition to organising environmental safety education
programmes for the management level and the
employees from time to time, the Group has also merged
the concept of environmental safety and hygiene into
major corporate events (for example, participation in tree
planting activities organised by environmental protection
units under local governments, and reception of
government agencies or academic groups for visits of the
sewage treatment system of the Company, etc.) in order
to create an impact by combining environmental safety
education with operating activities.

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2018, there were 13 cases of work injury in the
Group's primary production bases, which resulted in a
total of 4,699 lost working hours due to work injury.
Among which, a total of 888 hours of traffic accidents
were happened outside the factory area (accounting for
19%), whereas a total of 3,811 hours of work-related
accidents occurred within the factory area (accounting
for 81%). The Group will continuously minimise the
occurrence of work safety accident within the factory
area every year through rigorous safety education,
management system and equipment.

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including I1SO 14001,
OHSAS 18001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001 and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards
of the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT BIEHAERET

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ HH: BUME£ME -HESTHEF (&)
Benefits (continued)

(5) Development and training - Talent cultivation and (5) BEEBI-AFEE BUBSITER
establishment of learning and growing environment NWEBRRERR
which employees can follow

The Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company. The nurture and
development of talents are valued and each employee is
provided with comprehensive educational training and
promotion system to satisfy their needs from different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees.

The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.

64  vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BB (25%) R A =

EEREATRRARRANEE &
BATOEE RER  RFETEIR
HEENHFIRREFAHELE
MEBT ke TRBEREEEEST
ZEBFR EBMLEIRF/NUTDE
BRI A

SEEHERHBEIREZESGE R
REBMERIBREMTEFTR  MME
ERENMEXRIE WEHRRMPREX
BE M EREREERTE - LEEFTE TR

BERE

SEBFRT(HBEIRFEER
2] Atz rs2E BREIIINK
B EEZSEHBE RN &
] th 7F HA /1 BE = 22 58 B0 1 E HP 3 R
B BEREEE  EMEHIEIE
T MEHEN GEIHITEEM
AL IS TH AR RRERK-

AEREEZREERK FERE
KBREEEAS  SEAEMMEKX
=ENEI TEEEREBIFI-
RAEEERYE  WEHEHESTT
HBR BEASFENEATE
NHFEEEARRRHPEENRFTE
RAABROBESS -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT BIEHAERT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ HH: BUMEME HESTIHEF (&)
Benefits (continued)

(5) Development and training - Talent cultivation and (5) BEEBI-AFEE BUBITEMR
establishment of learning and growing environment WEERREE (&)
which employees can follow (continued)

(6)

In 2018, there were a total of 64,833 hours of education
and training courses organised by the main production
bases of the Group with an average training hours
of approximately 18 hours per person every year,
representing a rise by 24% in training hours per person
as compared to 2017. In 2018, total hours of middle
and high management personnel of the Group taking
occupational training courses were 12,736 hours
(middle management officers) and 6,579 hours (senior
management officers), respectively, soared by 43% in
training hours taken by middle management officers and
spiked by 72% in training hours by senior management
officers as compared to 2017.

Labour standards - Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
“establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.

The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

(6)
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RE - HEREREE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6)

)

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws (continued)

Implementation of an annual external audit on human
resources recruitment agencies which cooperate with the
major production bases of the Group so as to ensure such
external agencies do comply with labour and safety laws
and regulations.

Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system

The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene and analysing the causes thereof, and
suggesting feasible improvement proposals or refined
engineering designs to the Group in an endeavour
to assist the Group to continuously heighten the
management standards.

Annual targets of management on environment, safety
and hygiene have been set in each factory area of
the Group in accordance with local regulations. The
occurrences of abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene have been effectively reduced
through an implementation of environment, safety and
hygiene inspections, education and trainings and regular
inspections on working environment in order to maximise
the working efficiency of the employees in a safe and
healthy environment.

In addition to self-initiated inspections on environment,
safety and hygiene by each unit of the Group, the internal
inspection department also regularly reviews all operating
control on environment, safety and hygiene in the factory
area and the relevant operating environment to ensure
the implementation management systems such as ISO
14001, OHSAS 18001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP,
ISO 9001, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - #HEREREHE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT friEsEE

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining BR BbtgeRE SEEEERARAR
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued) (#&)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management — &S T A T EREIBBUR -
policies with considerable efforts:

ERETHERTEES URARSE
BHE

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of (1)
improving management system of both parties

The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Programme”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. In 2018, the Group fully completed the
annual supplier assessment as planned.

The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.

Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

In order to carry out safety management for contractors
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the
Group not only continuously reminds and informs
the contractors of the relevant safety management
requirements, but also conducts on-site supervision over
the operation safety of the manufacturers and procures
them to implement their own management to prevent
safety hazard to workers or damage to the environment
arising from improper operation.

The Group also requires engineering contractors to
comply with and undertake to abide by all requirements
under the “Management Measures for Safety
and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies and
requirements under ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the safety
before, during and after the construction in order to
ensure the operation safety and environmental hygiene.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - #HEREREHE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group's
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also participates in
various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment from time to time in
hope to continue to manufacture with relatively high-
efficiency equipment, reduce energy consumption per
unit, reduce the cost of electricity used for operation,
thereby implement energy management and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2018, the Group’s primary production bases
maintained a green procurement policy to achieve a
carbon emission control. Specific accomplishments
include: (a) continuous efforts in procurement at local
production places; (b) maintain the use of biomass energy
and production use unit demand purchase; (c) completion
of 100% procurement target for electrical appliances
with energy-saving labels.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

High quality is an important core capability which the Group has
always maintained. In order to give customers full confidence in
the quality of the products, the Group continues to improve quality
control and achieve customers’ expectations through high standards
of quality control to create quality products and live up to customers’
satisfaction.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

. In order to maintain the core competitiveness of the
product quality, the Group continues to maintain
various food safety management systems, including
GMP+Feed Safety Assurance, ISO 17025, HACCP, ISO
9001 and FSSC 22000, and to enforce them on relevant
production aspects so as to enhance its competitiveness
and satisfy customers’ requirements on quality and the
requirements of food safety standards. In addition, a total
of 28 new agreements on relevant foods announced by
the government were made during 2018, and internal
education training was implemented to ensure that the
new agreements were fully carried out.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

° In 2018, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group's product in the random inspection was
approximately 0.03% in 2018, an improvement shown as
compared to the fail rate of 0.15% last year, and it was
maintained to enhance the system for the traceability of
source management.

° The Group performed a product recall drill in 2018 for
every main product (MSG, flavour seasoning, modified
starch, maltose syrup, rice protein, animal and plant liquid
and solid feed, and Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds),
enabling it to face potential circumstances with ample
experience.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY EmEE

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2)

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations

As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
"operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

Addressing customers’ opinions and feedback and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

In order to grasp the customers’ satisfaction with the
products operated by the Group, and to investigate
whether the products meet the expectations of customers
and market, the customers’ satisfaction survey is
conducted every year for various items managed by the
Group, in which the surveys on MSG and seasonings will
be made twice a year, hence the Group can fully obtain
feedback to adjust the market strategies.

In 2018, the Group received 6 customer feedback in
total. The general management office has appointed a
designated person to arrange the response to customers’
feedback and the response rate was 100%.
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RE - HEREREE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2) Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations (continued)

° Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2018 (one inspection in every two months)
to ensure that the management measures are duly
implemented by every department.

° The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.

NTI-CORRUPTION AND PREVENTIVE MEASURES
Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group’s reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group's anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

NTI-CORRUPTION AND PREVENTIVE MEASURES

Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards
(continued)

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group’s assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group's system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2018.
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RE - HEREREE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company's active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.

The followings set forth a summary of the Group’'s community
development and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has been cooperating with the Government
of Dong Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital,
Taiwan and Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for seven
consecutive years to carry out international medical support
activities which benefitted over ten thousand people.
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RE - #HEREREHE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

HMEEEREELD
BE REHERE LRLELT (H)

(2) Encouragement to employees to participate in social 2 BEEISHEUENRIH
welfare activities
The Group always encourages its employees to participate in EERREEEIAFL2EZENGG
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of B EEZUEERERAERS SN
the Group and their families have set an example by working TORHAEAEERE T RERED
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice ET HEHREIME THEZLZETNH
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite EEE RBAFLOSETE-
their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.

(3) Continuous charity and public welfare activities (B3) BEETEELAHRTETH
To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help impoverished =T EEBRBARBE MEIREREEY
families, the Group adheres to the concept of gaining healthy KB AEREERR @R REEE D
lives through flavourful and delicious food and organises B SEBFREBRARAE] - [H
various activities such as “Spreading Warmth at the End of the RESE:] [BREABE] [REEE
Year”, “Gratitude Fund”, “Building Warm-Hearted House” and ] ELZEFY AHERZEHEEE
“Poverty Fund” every year to provide the most appropriate #9173 Bl ©
support to the needy.

(4) Facilitation of environmental protection and energy (4) HBRBEEEREHE
conservation education
In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of ARESRZEREREIREEBRENE

energy and climate change issues among all people, the Group
cooperated with the local government and international
organisations every year to promote the concept of forest
conservation by organising different activities such as “Green
Sunday”, “Tree Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing
Competition” and “Classification of Household Waste”,
and sponsor a variety of environmental protection funds in
an endeavour to facilitate environmental protection, forest
conservation, forest expansion and improve the ecological
environment.

E SESFEAEMBTEMN RERA
BESEMEMNER BRsEIRE
BR]TEE] [REEELE]  [HE
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RFRE  EREMBARARMKER MK

EERREME N -
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RE - HEREREE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(5)

(6)

Continuous promotion of study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group not only
entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration Memorandum”
with numerous higher education institutions, but also regularly
carried out study encouragement in accordance with the local
government policies and gave scholarships and donations for
construction of schools in a bid to provide better education to
outstanding students in order to encourage students to study hard.

Spreading Warmth at the end of the Year
PR AN 2KOR B

Generation of a centripetal force towards society by
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day,
tug-of-war competitions for employees, commending senior
employees, establishing party organisations and organising
activities in a bid to enhance a sense of belonging of the
employees to the local culture and earn recognition of the
Company from communities.
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RE - #HEREREHE

PROSPECTS

“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare, and sound corporate governance. The Group will continue
to improve and formulate the most complete development solutions
which integrate operating procedures, and will continuously strive for
corporate excellence, facilitating social development and creating a
better environment.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility and develop
green economy. The Group expects not only to continue to grow
and develop in the food industry, but also to have a significant
influence — It will also focus on climate change, including issues such
as carbon reduction in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

i

The Group's compliance of General Disclosures and KPIs: SEETF-REELBREIIEREBITIEL:

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B (BR -it@RELHEES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEH —REBERBAEENER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

[FETHER EEEERBZ2BITHERE

A. Environmental

BIR
A1 Emissions: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
HER A —RIFE (2016.1.14£ %K)

Information on:

BREBRMRERBHN  RKRLHHHES BEREBEZEREY

MEEER:

(a)  the policies; and As stated in the section

(@ BR K headed “Environmental

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Protection (1) Emission
significant impact on the issuer management” in this

(by HBTFHETABEAZZNHEBEIERBRFNER - report

mEmEE [REREN)
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into PR EE | EHRUL
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

7 (WEREREEASY BRI REMRBEREERRIRE
ObER 37K

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

7 QAERBEFA-—StHR Bk SR SRRECEY 2RI
R R AL

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

i QEEEEMEBRRAOIMAESE -
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BEE —REBERERERER

"Comply or explain” Provisions

[REFHAERE]

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BREAMERZ (2017.1.14 %)

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

FRRABURIRAL R EE R AR EE -

KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BRENIEEA 2 ORERBAEBNE (AEE) & (1EA)®
E(WLEBESEN BHERMTHE) -

KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FAREZIEEAMI - MELABEEREDRE (UHHE) &k (1#E
R)EE (MABESEN BHEKBHE)

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BREVIEEAM 4 - MEAREEEDES (AWEGTE) & (10#E
REE (WA EBEEE BHEZMFHE) o

BRE HEREAREHESD) cHEX

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

AREEHRBECBITRT

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MR EE RRRE)SE
WYE R | AU

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MR EE RBREN S
WY E R | & &Rl

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

M EE RBRE S
WA E R | EE R

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MR EE RRRE) S
W E IR | EERUM
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)

(continued)

A2 Use of
Resources:

ERER:

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BE —REBERERERER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[ 38 <7 5 iR 12

KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

FARAEBURIRALS  HIURESE N E MR R A SAR

KPlI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BRETESAMe  HIEREEREEEEMN G E BIEKE
EEMRERAERR-

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RIHE (2016.1.1. %)

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRERER (BHREER KEEAMERME)SOBER -

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
2 BARABREE RE E&H BF BFRES-
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BRE HEREAREESD cHEX

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

AREERECBITRT

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MR EE RRRE) S
W E IR | EERUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

kG E [RIERE)SE
WY E R | & & AUl

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MMEE RIBREQ)E
RERAERE] E&aul



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BEE —REBERERERER

"Comply or explain” Provisions

[REFHAERE]

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BREAMERZ (2017.1.14 %)

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BRETEZEA2  RERESNERER SEEER(NE R
gom) EREE (UTETERFE) REE (WASEEEN 517
B H) o

KPI' A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
FSRBMIEIEA2.2 - BFRKEREE (MAEBEESEM - 5§18

HE) o

iid

&

KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
RASRBE BRI IZA2.3 e R (F A st BI RIS AR -

KPI A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

B4R 4B B IR A2.4 - 4 Sk ERGE A 7RO B AT B (AR R RE - A R 4R
FHRK Mt 8 R FAERR -

KPI A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BRETIEEAS B RAEEMRNES (ABTE) X
(MER)BEEBMEE-

BRE HEREAREHESD) cHEX

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

AREEHRBECBITRT

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

M EERRREQ)E
REAERE] E&u

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MFEERIBREQE
TR AE R ZEAUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MMEE RBREQ)E
REAERE] EEaul

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MEERBREQ)E
TR E R E AU

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MmEERFREQE
IR AE R EEAUM
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(RE -gREAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BE —REBERERERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report
[ FE<FHAEE] AREEREZEITEL
A3
Environment
and Natural
Resources: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
BERRXAER: — R E (2016.1.1.£%)
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the As stated in the section
environment and natural resources. headed “Environmental
WIRBEITAEHRERRAERENERNFZEMBE Protection (3)

Environment and natural
resources management”
in this report
MR EE RRREGC)KR
BERRAABREE] Z&
KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BRENER (2017.1.14£ %)

KPI A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on As stated in the section
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to headed “Environmental

manage them. Protection (3)
FAREIEIZAS Rl EEREHIRBERRAERMNEAFEZ  Environment and natural
REHENEEEETENTH - resources management”

in this report
mEmEE REREQ)R
BERAARERER] Z 6
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE g REAREES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHEER BEE —REBERERERER

Compliance as
disclosed in

“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREERE

[FETHEE] BENE BiTER

B. Social # &

I. Employment and
Labour Practices

— EREREIRER
B1 Employment: General Disclosure
ER: (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RIKE (2016.1.1.5%)

Information on:
FEBREFMEERE RERER
TR BE TERe 21
b RBAR A e B A 45 38 2 48
7

a) the policies; and As stated in the section
W& R headed “Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)

Employment principles”

R

(
(
(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that SR
have a significant impact in this report
on the issuer MREEETIRHA
(b) BTHETAREATEM ?ET}JUMEEJ?E‘IJ 51
EREERADINER - At

relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

BRE HEREAREESD cHEX

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEEH —REBERBAENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ

B2 Health and
Safety:
RERZZ:

[FETHEE

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—REE (2016.1.1.453)

Information on:

EBRHEZ2IERERRER

BREBERREN:

(@) the policies; and

(@ HE: R

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABERZEN
HEEERAOMER -

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-BREARER

KPI B1.1
BREMIERB1

KPI B1.2
MR IE1ZB1.2
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Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

IR EEER  ERARI R
EESMESAH-

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER FRAR KR EHH
EERKLE-

BITER

As stated in the section
headed “"Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
MREEETIRHAA
BHOEERA] 265
618

As stated in the section
headed “"Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
MBEEETIRRH
BRHO)EERE] 26
At

As stated in the section
headed “"Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBEEETRMAE
BHeRER 2 RER
B TERE ] EFsUL



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H@RE HEREIFREES) cHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#%)
(continued)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEHE EH —RESREREXER

Compliance as
disclosed in

“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREERE
[FETH#EE] EENE BEiTER
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-BRARER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related ~ As stated in the section
MR 1B I 12B2.1 fatalities. headed "Employee
ATEERMIETHAZ KL  Practice and Benefit (4)
Ko Establishment of safe

and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MBEEETIFHREA
BAN@ORER 2 BER
W TERE | EEAUR
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. As stated in the section
W IR 1RB2.2 BAIGBATIERE- headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MBREEIETIRHRE
BAN@ORER 2 BER
W ITERE ] EEfUR
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational  As stated in the section
IR EMIEIZB2.3 health and safety measures headed "Employee
adopted, how they are Practice and Benefit (4)
implemented and monitored. Establishment of safe
MR M BERRELZ 2R and healthy working
W ARABHRITRER A environment” in this
report
MBREEIEIRHREA
BA@RBER 2 BER
W ITERE ] BEAUR

Annual Report 2018 £ 85



86

Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B3 Development
and Training:

BRERE:

BRE HEREAREESD cHEX

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEEH —REBERBAENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHEE

General Disclosure

(effective from 2016.1.1)

— R E (2016.1.1.£%)
Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
ERRTEERITIERER
RGBT B B B BUR e SR IR
o

Note: Training refers to
vocational training. It
may include internal
and external courses
paid by the employer.

i JlEBREE - AUE
EhEEN BRI
ARIZ e

Recommended Disclosures

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-BRERER

KPI B3.1
R E IR 1RB3.1

KPI B3.2
BRIENIEEB3.2

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited A BEIER (£5) R 27

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and
employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle
management).
RUERIREEER (NBRER
B THRERES)EINXIE
AL

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
BUEFI R EERRE S LR
EEhEEERSaIEs &

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ
BTEN

As stated in the section
headed “"Employee
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MREEEIRHA
BHG)EREEEI] 2
B AT

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MBEEETIRHAE
BAC)EREAE] &
B AT

As stated in the section
headed “"Employee
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MREE[ETRRA
BREG)EREEI]E
R



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE g REAREES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEEH —REBRBAEENER

Compliance as

disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREERE
[FETH#EE] EENE BEiTER
B4 Labour: Standards: General Disclosure
SITEA: (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RIKE (2016.1.1.5%)

Information on:

BRMEETHRHSTH:

(@) the policies; and As stated in the section
@ BE: R headed “Employee
(b) compliance with relevant Practice and Benefi’t, (6)
laws and regulations that La.bour standards” in
have a significant impact this report _
on the issuer MREEBRIRRR
(b) WFHETAFEATEM B AI(6)55 TR Al S8
HEERRANNHER- At
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
EERE-HREEANESR
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to  As stated in the section
SRR IERA review employment practices to  headed "Employee
avoid child and forced labour. Practice and Benefit (6)
iR B BIMEHELAE 2 Labour standards” in

ETRAHABT this report
MREE[ETIRAA
BFI(6)% TEH ] 265

At
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to  As stated in the section
BRENIE1284.2 eliminate such practices when headed "Employee
discovered. Practice and Benefit (6)
HMERRERBAKERER Labour standards” in
BERFTRIMM S this report

mMHEEEEIRARE
BHN(6)% THR ] T
Egul
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

BRE HEREAREESD cHEX

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEEH —REBERBAENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ

[FETHEE]

II. Operating Practices

—EEEH

B5 Supply Chain General Disclosure
Management: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HEEEE: —REE (2016.1.1.45 %)

Policies on managing
environmental and social risks of

the supply chain.
ERHERBENRE R RREK
%o

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-BRAXER

KPI B5.1
R AR 1R85

KPI B5.2
BRI AIE1RB5.2

88  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BB (328%) AR A

Number of suppliers by
geographical region.
BRSSO HEHEE -
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.
HABEHEREERNEN @
HHTEBEN MHRERHE
NEEBENNRTRERS
e

BITER

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management” in this
report

mBEE MHEEER ]
B AU

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management (1), (2)
and (3)" in this report

MBREEMEEEER
(M @RE)] E&R



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE g REAREES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEEH —REBRBAEENER

Compliance as

disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREERE
[FETH#EE] EENE BEiTER
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
EmEfE: —RHE (2016.1.1.£%)

Information on:
BERRMEERMRS R ER
Z2 EE EERLEZEENEK

R ER

(@) the policies; and As stated in the section

@ BE: Rk headed "Product

(b) compliance with relevant Responsibility” in - this
laws and regulations that LE501 -
have a significant impact ﬁﬂiﬁﬁé [EmEElE
on the issuer iF e

(b EFHETABEATEN
BB AR RIS -

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

BRE HEREAREESD cHEX
(%)

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEER BEEH —REBERBAENER

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AFEEREZ
BTER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHEE

Recommended Disclosures

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-BREARER

KPI B6.1
B R R A5 1286.1

KPI B6.2
B ENIE1RB6.2

KPI B6.3
PR ENIEE86.3

KPI B6.4
AR E N E1RB.4

KPI B6.5
B ENIE1RB6.5

90 vedan International (Holdings) Limited &/ BB (25%) AR A =

Percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

EEREEXREMBHTRLZ 2
BRFRHMALKNE AL -

Number of products and service
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.
BRBRNEMNRBORFEE
AR %

Description of practices relating
to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

il EEERRENRERER
H & -

Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.
R E ST B REmEYE
o

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

WL HEEEHRERILER
B UARBARTRER -

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
NREEEMRA
(1) ] el

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (2)" in
this report
nREEEMRA
(2) | EEfd

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
mHEEEmERE
(1] Egfud

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
NHEEEREM
(1) ] et

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
NREEERRR
(1) ] el



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

BRE HEREAREHESD) cHEX
(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEEH —REBRBAEENER

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ
BTEN

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures

BENE

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—RHE (2016.1.1.£%)

Information on:

BRMLER BR - HERER

B7 Anti-corruption:

RES:

23
(a) the policies; and
@ HE R

As stated in the
section headed “Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

() ETHEOTABEATEM this report
HEEERBORER - mHREEIRABHA]
- F§ U

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-HEANER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal As stated in the

BRIENIEIZBT . cases regarding corrupt practices  section headed “Anti-
brought against the issuer orits corruption and
employees during the reporting ~ Preventive Measures
period and the outcomes of the  (1)" in this report
cases. mREEIRERHA
RERBAHETAIEEER (1)) B&HRUL
HIEEENETHRARERE
BRHFALER-

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive As stated in the

B ENIEIRET.2

measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
mpBEERBEREF AR
HERTRERR A

section headed “Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures
(2)" in this report
mHEEIRESMA
(2) | Egifud
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(RE -gREAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

1ll. Community
=HE
B8 Community

TEER BEE —REBERERERER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHEE

General Disclosure

Investment: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HERE: —REE (2016.1.1.45 %)

Policies on community
engagement to understand
the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and
to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BB ELERT REEME
HERENRREEKEZHEE
JE AL &5 A B R

KPI B8.1

RS IE E 1388 1

KPI B8.2

BRIENIEIEBS.2

92  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BB (25%) R A =

Recommended Disclosures

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-BRERER

Focus are as of contribution
(e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,

culture, sport).

LIERER (WHE- f?ﬁﬁ?
E-SIFR BE X 4

§)°

Resources contributed (e.g.
money or time) to the focus

area.

EZIERMPAER(MEE

FEf) o

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ
BTEN

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MREEMELEH
?-?%/A/\J BERUL

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
MREEMHELEH
BERH(1)-(6)] ZE
AU

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MREE(MELEH
BEDNE | B



Report of Directors

EEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 10 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Preface

For fair review of the Group’s business, the description about major
risks and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this Report.

Subsequent events after year end date

No major event that influences business operation of the Group has
occurred since 31 December 2018 (the balance sheet date of the
financial year under review) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.

ARAEF([EFDENERBE_ZT—/\F
T_A=Z+ - BLEFENEFERE REEX
ARE -

TEEH
RABAREER AT EMEARETEREMN
BERIMEERERESD RAOAMIE RAZR
MIEER EMBAREBERNFBHIIN
BR B FIEE10 ©

ZEEBREEFE LM EATE -

EXBOE

#E

BRAKEXBNTEES EHEEZRBRMT
RAPRRZNIHRAREBRE F2HAREZ
[TEREEIRERBENBRON] MET-

FRBEREHE
B2 N\F+ZA=+—0 (DEMRFELH
ERBREARER UTEFEAEHLENE
RNEMFHEE-

TERBERBREENDN
BRARBRAKEXHERANTEMBREER
Hi5 FR2HANFREA[BEE] -

RARKBRERRR

RERE - BESAKERIRBNINERRR
SECETEEEMERNBRRERERE
REREK SREREMATREDR EEEE
UETHABIRANAN BRIESTERE
B PIERRSR AR R RAER
MEMBIES RN KRARBKEZRELE-
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Report of Directors

EEERE

In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4. Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6.  Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

94  vedan International (Holdings) Limited &/ BB (25%) R A =
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Report of Directors

EEERE

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.

The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group's regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group’s
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 117.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.265
US cents per share, totalling US$4,042,000 (2017: US$6,750,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend will be paid in cash on 11 June 2019 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
29 May 2019.
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DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018 amounting to US$197,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders are set out in Note 17 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group purchased
less than 35% of its goods and services from its 5 largest suppliers
and sold less than 30% of its goods and services to its 5 largest
customers. None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 3,845 employees,
3,646 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 184 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 15 by the Taiwan Branch. The Group’s
employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing industry
practices, and with reference to the financial performance of the
Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance, medical
coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure
staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness. To enhance the quality
of human resources, bolster the professional skills and management
abilities of employees and build localised workforces, the Group
provides job rotation as well as internal and external training courses
and seminars on professional skills, languages, etc.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HSIEH, Lung-Fa (resignation effected on 23 Jul 2018)

HUANG, Chung-Fong (appointment effected on 22 October 2018)

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. CHOU,
Szu-Cheng and Mr. KO, Jim-Chen will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. According to
Article 86(3) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. HUANG,
Chung-Fong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All such Directors being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 30 to 35.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(@) As at 31 December 2018, the interests of Directors of the

Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the C

ompany or any of its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQO"), were as follows:—

EERkRH HRERMRRERZEGN

wRE
(a)

R-B—NE+-A=+—0 AATE
FRAD TR EAAARREE (P8RS

7 M ERPIEXVER) 2 B - MR ()
NE#EFEPHA 2 ERZIT  —

Interests in shares

RGPz R

Number of
ordinary shares
(Long Position)

Percentage of
issued shares
of the Company

Name Capacity ZEREAE HARATE BT
" & 56 (#=) R4 E 2L
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
SRS E controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)

REESZ b #ES QLEANSED)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIELE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)

REESZ bz #ES (BEE25%3)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
ERELE BEmEAA
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

HIEREE

Notes:

BEHEEEA

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power
of King International Limited (“King International”). Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to have interest
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng
had in the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been granted such
rights.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF DIRECTORS'’
INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2018 are as follows:

Mr. YANG, Cheng no longer serves as the adviser to the Taichung
City Government from 15 December 2018, the executive director of
Chunghwa Real Property Research Association from 31 December
2018.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been re-designated from Chairman to
executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers Association
from 7 August 2018.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of Kayee International Group Co., Ltd. (a publicly-
traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from
11 June 2018. Mr. Chen was also appointed a supervisor of Forcecon
Tech. Co., Ltd from 13 June 2018.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2017 annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2018.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month's notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou's appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.
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Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month's notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’'s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. HSIEH has resigned and effected on 23 July 2018.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above and continuing
connected transactions detailed below, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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Note Us$'000
B 5 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A. BRI IEEE R (i) 8,687
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MAEKSLNM (ii) 2,180
Taiwan Vedan Rtk E
Notes ffsE -

(i) The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),

MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
21 December 2017, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2020. The Directors believe that the sale of goods
to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group.
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(i)

(iii)

On 12 April 2018, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into the
supplemental agreement on substantially the same terms as the Taiwan
Sales Agreement, so as to revise the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions under the Taiwan Sales Agreement for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2020 from US$7,000,000
to US$30,000,000.

US$8,687,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$30,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 12 April 2018.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 21 December 2017, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2020. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group's future business
developments.

US$2,180,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 21 December 2017.

The prices of goods and services provided to connected persons of the
Company are determined within the normal commercial price range
and the price quotation of the product is determined after taking
into account the production cost and the local market price of the
product with an aim to maintain the overall gross profit margin within
a reasonable range. The management of the Company has reviewed
the prices of transactions with connected persons and those with other
independent customers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the pricing
and terms with connected persons are fair and reasonable, and has
reported the relevant information at least once every six months to the
Board for review.

(i)

(iii)
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Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 102 to 103 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 34
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 218 of the annual
report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2018, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BEBmEE
ARREBERARNKFASHE AL ERL
BERERTE BERAQRARLIARARREE
FAAD o

AFMBRE
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Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares issued shares
(Long Position) of the Company
Name Capacity ZEREE mHEAFE
=x 54 (##&) BITROBES L
Billion Power Limited (”Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
ERBAA (Note 1)
(PREET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
(“Taiwan Vedan"”) corporation (Note 1)
KA ERNDERLAT ([HEKA]) REZEH 2 bR (PREET)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
BERMAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
EmEE A
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BERMAA
FECERNHAERADA Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%

EmBEBA
Notes:
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2018, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group’s controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group's products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non- AREAEENZ  ARTBYIERTEELE
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would 1 ZESTFHBT AEE 2 EHE LKL EE
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the — AWER (Hh ) KREE 2 E R REVES B
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in  ILJ & K F} A 208 - I 5 4 48 it -
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the

basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of

Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR % B

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who ZNBRB D&M B TR K E @I EHrEZ
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. ZZHEMEmER MRTEEEEET-

By Order of the Board AEESH

YANG, Kun-Hsiang IR ke

Director and Chief Executive Officer BEFHFITHAE

26 March 2019 —E-hF=ZA=-+H
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_i
pwe s Bk i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HRFAER (ZR)BRATRE
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REESHSTME T ERLA])
Opinion BER

What we have audited BEPEFEGF AR

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International ZIERE115E217E KRR (1K) BR A
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the B ([ERQAR)IREMBAR([E£8])NE

“Group”) set out on pages 115 to 217, which comprise: el BmE - EhaE:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018; . RZE-NE+_A=+—HHGEEEE
BEXR:

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; . HEZAILFENGENERE:

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o HEZALFENGEEEKEE

year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year o HEZRALFENGERREH R
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o HEZALFENGEeHEERER &
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which e REMBHRENTE ERBRREEESEH
include a summary of significant accounting policies. KHE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

EIFIHER

BHRR ZEEEUMBRRECRERES
fAg ([BAGFEAE])BEMHE BB R
SR ([FEMBREE ) EEMPHHBR
B EEER_FT-N\F+_A=1+—HHE
EHMBRRAREREZALFENGAMBR
ARGARERE UDERER (RREH)
ZHRBREZREE-

ERER
BHMCREELESTAASEMNTEENE
Al ([BAFEER])ETET -RAEZFE
AT B AERN IR RS e B L AR
B BmRARENETSHAFL -

BIEE - RPIMERHRABE LR EMNE
WwREMHE R ER -

i3

Bt

REFBGTLGH (BESHEBETAD
(T=p81)) - BB BEEE - XOARETH
BITEMBRERE T

MEESEER
MRBFRERERMANEXHE  BREAR
HRGAMBREANBITRAEEN TR FL
FERERMEAERGAVBERRIERE
REETRE - R TS HELERREHEBN
BRe
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment of

goodwill.

Key Audit Matter
BRES SR

BFERET TR W AR ET S REHERE
B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET U AEERRETER

Impairment of goodwill

BERE

Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2 AMIEHRERWEE

As at 31 December 2018, goodwill amounting to
US$7.4 million related to the PRC MSG related business.
As described in the Note 2.8 to the consolidated
financial statements, goodwill impairment assessments
are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-
in-use and the fair value less costs to sell.
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8B HHBEREEBEELE
AR ENEE AT A EET MG E M B mEMN T
2.8t BB FETREN G TERAEHHIRE
BB B B R AT R H IR E RS (F L B SRR AT - R
EEETYESE (EREEREATFEREEXNANZ
WmE ) ELLE -

Management tests annually whether goodwill suffered
any impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets prepared by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows of the related CGU beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates.

B EETEEREMRE EEEeFFETAH -
HENFEOERRERBEAEEMET LA EE
SAEDUNERERE DFMVBEERELERARY
AREREERN BERFHNBEBRRRE ELNER
emEAMERERES -

We focus on this area because these calculations and
valuations require the use of significant judgements
and estimates. These estimations are also subjected to
uncertainty.

HRZEFERERAERTEELRERN 2B RMEET
BAE ST EHE - ZEEFA T TARRETE -
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We evaluated the appropriateness and consistency of
assumptions and estimates applied in financial budget
prepared by management covering a five-year period such
as sales growth rate, gross margin and discount rate by
comparing with relevant market rates, current year and
historical trends of the business and the industry and
management’s development plans.
BMEEBRLEBHEATE EBRITELAFERELBE
NEERBEz#ERAE FAEEANEREREZ LFHE
BRERHRKR LG (NHEEERE ERNERNBRERE)
BEE M R — Bt .

We involved our internal valuation specialist to assess
the valuation methodology, discount rate adopted and
the numerical accuracy of the calculations prepared by
management.
BRAHABEEZSRE2EBAGEERENGETE KAH
PR FETH ERNE A R -

We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis which
considers the effect of reasonably possible changes of major
assumptions including sales growth rate, gross margin and
discount rate to the recoverable amount of goodwill.

BHACHEERENGRENT EhELE2HKR A5

EMaEZ(NEE BREEERX -EMNXRBEATR
Bl &R E-

Based on the procedures described, we considered the
methodology used and key assumptions applied in the
impairment assessment of goodwill is supportable.

BB BARASREBERETEFRAERN T ER
FIERNEERERBIRIE-
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, except for the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, which is expected to be made available to us
after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Hit&EH
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

e HEERAKEKLESTERNBEMNE
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MAR BEEE UREAMBHmRE
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 SPEETE FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights - b {5 R A 6 1,892 2,042
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 7 151,788 145,612
Intangible assets mEE 9 8,566 9,070
Long-term other receivables = B H b JE Y 5R0E 14 725 1,307
Investment in an associate REERRZEE 1 6,119 3,555
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 169,090 161,586
Current assets REBEE
Inventories VENS 13 91,102 82,868
Trade receivables FEUE 5 RN 14 33,151 31,651
Short-term loan to an associate BT ENT
RAEE X 11, 34(d) 120 120
Prepayments and other receivables TE T FRIE &
H & W sR0E 14 13,465 9,351
Amount due from a related party FEWEBEALTRIE  34(d) 1,191 242
Current income tax recoverable EHTREMEN 1,241 2,872
Structured bank deposits HEBMRITER 15 8,888 3,903
Short-term bank deposits REIRITER 15 15,342 16,063
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEY 15 34,215 49,679
Total current assets REBEELE 198,715 196,749
Non-current assets held for sale BIEREZIERBDEE 8 - 366
Total assets EEHAE 367,805 358,701
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners KAREBAELER
of the Company
Share capital & A< 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves & 17 271,128 270,182
286,356 285,410
Non-controlling interest IR 326 (2,827)
Total equity ESEE 286,682 282,583
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
= % —
Note US$'000 Us$'000
B 5 SPEETE FET
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Bank borrowings HRITHEE 19 15,697 19,491
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFEHAaRE 20 3,238 3,263
Retirement benefit obligations BIREMNE T 29 1,478 1,447
Long-term environmental provision RER G BAE 18 387 233
Total non-current liabilities kRBEELRTE 20,800 24,434
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JETE SRR 18 20,875 15,772
Accruals and other payables FEET B A K H Ao FE AT
B 18 16,874 17,509
Amounts due to related parties FEREREEALTRIE  34(d) 1,391 1,660
Bank borrowings RITIEE 19 20,469 15,906
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS TR Bt 714 837
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 60,323 51,684
Total liabilities =RiE R 81,123 76,118
Total equity and liabilities EaREELARH 367,805 358,701
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction  Filisr A BE B BEREERBREM T —HEE-

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 217 were HRFI1SE217TE 2 HRAUBHREREN T
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and were —AF=ZA-+ NAEEESHEMITH TIA

signed on its behalf. TRERE-
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

e EY B EE

Director Director

BFE BFE
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Consolidated Income Statement

ReElER
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—-BHLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
k=3 FEx FET
Revenue U =5 5, 21 356,772 322,805
Cost of sales & BCAR 23 (289,274) (254,668)
Gross profit ER 67,498 68,137
Other gains — net H b Uiz — 558 22 459 935
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 23 (23,117) (21,746)
Administrative expenses TR 23 (22,974) (24,272)
Operating profit BERF 21,866 23,054
Finance income RS U 929 853
Finance costs M (832) (804)
Finance income — net B IR A — 58 24 97 49
Share of post-tax profit of an associate NG|
R 75 12 )4 A 1 44 205
Profit before income tax B BT 18 B4 A0 % A 22,007 23,308
Income tax expense Frisfim= 25 (4,613) (4,570)
Profit for the year REEEF 17,394 18,738
Profit attributable to: DT &FEERF
Owners of the Company KARHEER A 14,285 19,061
Non-controlling interest FEVE R 3,109 (323)
17,394 18,738
Earnings per share for profit EAREEAELRER
attributable to the owners of mAzERAER
the Company during the year (ABREMWZR)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BRERER 27 0.94 1.25
Diluted earnings per share SRESER 27 0.94 1.25

The above consolidated income statement should be read in  FilisrA Uz REBR BN F—GFBIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEWERE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit for the year REEEF 17,394 18,738
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Ht2m (E) WA:
ltem that may be reclassified to AENHEEERIEE
profit or loss
Currency translation differences VEH Z=% (2,013) 2,054
Other comprehensive (loss)/income TEERBEHMZE
for the year, net of tax (E51E) A (2,013) 2,054
Total comprehensive income AEEXEBRALE
for the year 15,381 20,792
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTEFEGREEZEHRA S
for the year attributable to: (E518) M5
- Owners of the Company S WNEIE PN 12,228 21,290
— Non-controlling interest —IE PR R R 2 3,153 (498)
Total comprehensive income AEEXEBRALE
for the year 15,381 20,792

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should — _Fili4r 4 2 U 5% FEE B ARRE M s — O RIEE -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KD EEE AL
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity

K& ROEE ENRE  A0EE  EERE  REEA #x FEREE BEAR
US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TET e TET TET TET e TEL TETL TET

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE-+%-A-H

Pk 15,228 47,358 10,885 79,994 783 127,287 281,535 (2,329) 279,206
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year REREN - - - - - 19,061 19,061 (323) 18,738
Other comprehensive income/ Et2ERA/ (F])

(loss)

Currency translation differences ERES - - 2,229 - - - 2,229 (175) 2,054
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWRA/ (B8) 48 - - 2,229 - - 19,061 21,290 (498) 20,792

Total transactions with owners HERAZARZE
Dividends (Note 26) &8 (Hi3E26) - - - - - (17,415) (17,415) - (17,415)

Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+=A=t-H

2t 15,228 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-RAZ&H 15,228 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - 14,285 14,285 3,109 17,394
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Et2E (F8) /KA

income

Currency translation differences EREE - - (2,057) - - - (2,057) 44 (2,013)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 27 (F8) /WALHE - - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228 3,153 15,381

Total transactions with owners BREEAZERSE
Dividends (Note 26) & (fits26) - - - - - (11,28 (11,282) - (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ENREZERE - - - - 45 (45) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+ZA=+-A

P21 1508 47358 11057 79,99 88 131891 2863% 26 286,68
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  biiéRARERE K EEREBNE—HRIE-

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBCHRERE
Cash generated from operations X¥BELAZERS 31(a) 29,456 21,721
Interest paid B FE (1,106) (812)
Income taxes paid 2 AT TS (3.116) (7,893)
Net cash generated from operating KREEBEEZ
activities e FH 25,234 13,016
Cash flows from investing activities REFTEBZHRERE
Purchases of property, plant BEWE WELREHE
and equipment (23,636) (16,193)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWME HE R
plant and equipment BB TS RIE 31(a) 86 149
Proceeds from disposal of assets PEFELEZ
held-for-sale BEEZEHRIEA 8 411 1,360
Purchases of intangible assets HBERFEEE 9 - (77)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits EERITE O 2 721 17,224
Increase in structured bank deposits EEMEIRIT I FOG M (4,985) (3,903)
Interest received 2 UF & 888 790
Investment in an associate REtEa alzi&E& 11 (2,520) -
Net cash used in investing activities HEEBFAZ
We (29,035) (650)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEZHEERE
Dividends paid B A 26 (11,282) (17,415)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMRENIEA 48,045 27,987
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (47,269) (29,400)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEEFAZ
REFHE (10,506) (18,828)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRELEEY
equivalents B FEE (14,307) (6,462)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzRHe R
beginning of year ReEEY 15 49,679 55,210
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and RekReEEBYM
cash equivalents FE (BE) (1,157) 931
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZRER
REEEY 15 34,215 49,679

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate ("MSG"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

WABRER ZER)ERAF ([KRRF]) R
HfBAR (A AEEDEERBE
EEEBRIFNE ELLERRAER
MIXEM BEEZERY SRR
i ([RE]) IRk ([28
Bl) - EmNHETHE EMREKE
Bz hmEARLME ([HE]) B
BERZEBRMNBERORMD HE B
BHRF URRME Bam SERETE
mAEER

ARRIRRASHSTMARLIZBR A
&) sEff B E R MUk R P.O. Box 10008,
Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands °

RRARNBEMARZMABRAR LM

BRETIASN sEMBRRIAEZT ([T
Erl)oE-.

RUBERFEFHRREBE

REMEGAMBRRFEAZEIEGTK
REINMOT -BRABIIHAN HFRRD
ERERRMEZRFE-

2.1 mEEE
REEMGEEVBREDBEMRE
BRANBEMGHREEL ([HEH
BWMEEN])MER 456 M B ®
RIVIBIRFE LK ANE Bl AR &Y

RUFABBUBRELEINEE
WERATEEAETEEN G T
HEt MEBBERBAEE Y €5f
BREBEFRITFEELHE - F R
[ HIE SOAE R 1 2 RS - SRR I
TR AMEREMEBEAZE
BRI E4NIEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group

(a)

The Group has applied the following new
standards, interpretations and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the Company for the
first time for the financial year beginning on 1

January 2018:

Annual
Improvements
Project

HKAS 28
(Amendment)

HKAS 40
(Amendment)

HKFRS 1
(Amendment)

HKFRS 2

(Amendment)

HKFRS 4
(Amendment)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK (IFRIC) 22

Annual Improvements 2014
— 2016 Cycle

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Transfers of
Investment Property
First time adoption of HKFRS

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Foreign Currency
Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Impact on the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
are set out in Note 2.2. The adoption of other new
and amended standards and interpretation did not
have any material impact on the current period or

any prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBEERFTESHBREE(E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 mBEEE (F)
LTAEBEBMELIER-F

(b) The following new standards, interpretations and (b)
amendments to standards have been issued, but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018 and have not been early adopted.

—N\FE-A—-BRBZVRE
B BIREIZATIR A Z ¥
R BB REAZER]

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

RT3 BE8H
ZEEBKZ
FEHBEX

Annual Improvements
Project 2017

—ETLFZFERERR

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

BERHENEIRRES
58 Ee% (53T 4)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

EB R EAE 9%
SCHEN)
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BB G LR F285
(BRI )
HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

RV REEAFWR

CCHEN)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

FREW B RE LA FIWR

(ERTA)
HKFRS 16

FEWBREERIF 165

HKFRS 17

FEWBREERFE 175

HK (IFRIC) 23

T8 (BB BRERE

ZEE)F23%

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

HFRMBHREERE105E R

BB G ERE285
SCHEN)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

“E-N\FHBRSE
MEER

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

—E-RFE_ZT—+F
BHZ FEE

Definition of Material
EANTEE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
FTENSE] - RSB

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
FEHERNA e ERERN
REES
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
BEFaWMENERETISIE

Definition of Business

E Lol

Leases

HE

Insurance Contract

s

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PSR 32 2 It e 1%

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

WEEEARE A A%
BETEZHN
BEHEITE

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

BRI B mE B SIESRE

1 January 2019
—ET-hFE—H—H
1 January 2020
S
1 January 2019
—T-NF—-HA—H
1 January 2019
—T-hFE—-—H—H
1 January 2019
—ET-hF—-—H—H

1 January 2020
—ZE-FT¥—HA—H

1 January 2019

ZT-NEF—H—H
1 January 2022
T -Ff—-H—H
1 January 2019
—T-NF—-HA—H

To be determined

FEE

1 January 2020

—E-TF—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBERTIEFHBRFEHE(#E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b)  The following new standards, interpretations and b) UTEAEBEMEBIIIEN_-ZF

amendments to standards have been issued, but
are not effective for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2018 and have not been early adopted.
(continued)

The directors of the Company has assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption
of the above new standards, amendments and
interpretations. Except for HKFRS 16, there are no
other standards that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the futures reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions. The Group intends
to adopt the above new standards, amendments
and interpretation to existing standards when they
become effective.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

—NF-A—BFMKR PR
FREEXN BVEREARAZ
N REREAZER -
(&)

ARBEECFERA
EH BT AR BREBEAEE
ZHBHE-RERFERS
R ZE 165850 - BLEH M H R
RN TEHA A R SRR A
HAEBUANA RRKRRFE
REBATZE 2R REE
A EatEr A BI A R IR A 2R 2
& 5T AN Jo 2 B A UHS T A8
e

RV SRS EAF 165 -

Eitk=d
Nature of change EHEE

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of US$2,871,000, see Note 32.
The Group estimates those related to payments
for short-term and low value lease which will be
recognised on straight line basis as an expense in
profit or loss are insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 WREEERIEGHBFEERE (H)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b) The following new standards, interpretations and b) UTEAEBEMBIIIEN_-F

amendments to standards have been issued, but
are not effective for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2018 and have not been early adopted.
(continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (continued)

Nature of change (continued)

The Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary, for example,
the change in the definition of the lease term, the
different treatment of variable lease payments and
the extension or termination options. It is therefore
not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities that will have to be
recognised on adoption of the new standard and
how this may affect the Group’s profit or loss and
classification of cash flows going forward.

The directors of the Company expect that the
impact on the Group's financial positions regarding
the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy would not be material.
However, some additional disclosures will be
required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use
assets for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been
applied. All other right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability on
adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).

—NF-A-RBFMKR PR
FEAR BMERARAZ
FEQ REREAZER -
(&)

RV EREEAFE 165 -
(Mg (&)

AEE AT EAEHTER
i BE (E) Pl HE!
MRS B AR A S HE MR
BN MR DR RN TR
o AL 1 R BE AT R AR
AT 7 I B 0 B e R A0 {50 PR
BEMMERBESBURER
QR UOEZ 2N SET:0kisEy e
AERRERENR-

ARREEEHEE K
RAAL R BEU G RELE
AIZE165 H AN B 2 M 0N
BAEERERNTZE AR
B T FEBAELE TEINE

3= o

AEE RN A

REE K B ER 2B HIRA R
HZTE-AF-A—H)K
EZ R - REEBEE A ML
BEE BT EEERR
MR —F 2 BREE-MEMR
B2 ERMEEESNBRRS
E-BWHBRA-EEER-
P A E A fE AR E R IRN IR
M HERBESHENE (1
EREMNKEFHERH
) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBEERFTESHBREE(E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies 22 BHEREEH

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Impact on the financial statements

The following explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on the Group's financial
statements.

The Group elected to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
without restating comparatives. The reclassifications
and the adjustments are therefore not reflected in
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the opening balance
sheet on 1 January 2018.

There is no impact on the consolidated financial
statements as at 1 January 2018, except for the
reclassifications of receipt in advance to contract
liabilities in Note 18.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
9(7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative figures have
not been restated.

There is no impact on the Group’s retained earnings
as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

(b)

0]

(ii)

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held
by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9
categories. On the date of initial application,
1 January 2018, the financial instruments of
the Group were measured at amortised cost,
with no reclassification noted.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9
for each of these classes of assets. There
is no impact of the change in impairment
methodology on the Group's retained
earnings and equity. For details, please refer
to Note 3.1(b)(ii).

2

RHREERTFERHFEE (K])

2.2 EiEBERSH (E)
(b) BEYFIHEGEREIR [ 25

TA] (#)

(y DEERIHE
R—_E—N\F—HF—H
(BEAEHBHRELEDS
Oz EXERBE)
AEBZEEBED TG
HRARANEEFE
BEZEBEANRD
HemTADEERE
B mEEREIR 2 iE
EEAN-RBEXERR
BM(ZE—NF—A—
H) A&EBEze®MITA
REHEKATE L E
B0

iy =MEERE
RNEBMBERBEEENH
MEERFRIERT X E
BBBEZRER K-
BB A E B A EE
ZIRBBA RS E
FE - GRFE BE2H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

(c)

Customer”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” from 1 January 2018

which resulted in changes in accounting policies. In
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has adopted the simplified transition
method and did not restate the comparatives. In
summary, there is no adjustment or reclassification
to the amounts recognised in the balance sheet

(c)

RHEERIERHFEE (K])

22 BFBEE2H (&)

BB B R E 155 [
BESAHMZ W N

AREEE T N\E— A
—HRRAEEM B E
RIE155E [RERFA K2 K
W OESHEHRELD-
BT B SR E 155
2B AR E B IR
{338 5% - A7 8 & th B
FoREME BRTHIEEZ

at the date of initial application (1 January 2018), BN R EIXER B
except for a reclassification for the following: —E-N\F-A-R)ZEE
BERERZ CEMEETH
By EHHE:
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
BEBB
EBEER BEER
55185 155
REE REE
—E-tf —E-N\F
+=BA=+-H EFSE —A—H
us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
= FEr FET
(Restated)
(&575))
Trade payables, accruals EE SR -
and other payables EtERR
(extract) Hab S RIE (HR)
Receipts in advance FAURIE (HTE18) 1,296 (1,296) -
(Note 18)
Contract liabilities ama’E (HE18) - 1,296 1,296
(Note 18)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUBERIES

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BREE (1)

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customer” (continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

The Group has voluntarily changed the presentation
of certain amounts in the note to the financial
statements to reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15
and HKFRS 9:

° Contract liabilities in relation to receipts
in advance from customers for sales of
goods not yet delivered to customers, were
previously presented as receipts in advance in
trade and other payables (US$1,296,000 as at
1 January 2018).

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

22 B BEE2H (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

23 HEAR (&)
231456 (#)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.4), or financial
asset (Note 2.11). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements of the Company

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREEBERFTESHBREE(4E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 HNEBRE (H)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances b) KXBRAEH
Foreign currency transactions are translated into INER IR G EH T E
the functional currency using the exchange rates BEZGEERZHRITERR
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or BERNEE AL 54
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign B RIRF R E R F IR AINE 5T
exchange gains and losses resulting from the BrEEKEERBEMELEZ
settlement of such transactions and from the SMNEU N EE I REE K
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary mak NHERR - MR 2 IR T
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign EAEGERRERENE PR
currencies are recognised in the consolidated B EBFRE LRI
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.
All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented Ffr B 51N 22 8 1E 45 & U & 3%
in the consolidated income statement within “other e [Hfpli s —FE R 2
gains — net”. K

(c)  Group companies () ZEEFHRA

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREEBERFTESHBREE(4E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment, land use rights 27 YE-BERRE THEAE

(continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

(%)

fieh & 72 P T R At A9 AT W [ SRR
AR RIVE B 0 IR TE (B 5 32 2 15 HURL
EHAUEIREE (HFE2.9) -

& BE B BTSSR E AR
EEFLEMERE  XHALA K
RAFER S [HAD U s —FE ] -

ERIREBRATHET REE K
BRI AR R ETRE R B A
RorRIRTMMENE-

T (E AR T IR AR RET # i &
REFREBBEIIR (0F) - KA E
AW R BT R50F B s A
Moz THE RSN ZRE - L3
EREEE IR EREEERTHB
Mt &S -

2.8 Intangible assets 28 EEEE
(a)  Goodwill (a) BEE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(a)  Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

(b)  Trademarks and licence

Separately acquired trademarks and the licence,
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and
licence over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10
years.

(c)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUBERIEGHBREE (M)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale 210 HEREZERBEE
Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale FRBEENTERAESEZER
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally BEEXZMIEBBIFEERTUHU
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing e - BERABBARELER DA
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are RFEEFLEEE WiREEABEEAYF
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less BERIBEKARE 2 BREEF -
costs to sell.

2.11 Financial assets 211 BIKEE
2.11.1 Classification 2.11.1 728

The Group classifies its financial assets as debt
instruments to be measured at amortised cost.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.14),
cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.15), amount
due from a related party, short-term loan to an
associate, short-term bank deposits, structured
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

211 MIXEE (#)
2.11.2 BERR R AR IF AR

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable

2113
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to the acquisition of the financial asset. Rt EMBEE -
Debt instruments EHTHE

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

Financial assets at amortised cost are assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 WREEERIEGHBFEERE (H)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 BKEE (&)

2.11.4 Impairment 2.11.468 8

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis AEEIRTE AT G EAR
the expected credit losses associated with its BT R 2 EB T EEH
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The ZTEEEEEE - FTERA 2R
impairment methodology applied depends on BAERTEERBREEBAX
whether there has been a significant increase in 18 38 b0 M 5E o B EE3.1(b)FF At
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group rEEETEERBREGAAXN
determines whether there has been a significant PRGNz 7%

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the REKRESERME ~&H
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which KRB BB HEERFR
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised RFFZ B HE BERER
from initial recognition of the receivables. F R E YRR ERIEH 2
HiEE -

For other receivables, short-term loan to an MEMEWRFKIE -LTHER
associate and amount due from a related party, the AlZEHERREWNEREA
impairment provision is determined based on the T HRIEME  REREIR
12-month expected credit losses. B12{E AFEBEEEEEE -
When measuring expected credit loss, the Group Rit2EHEEEERE A%
considers both historial default rate and forward- EEREBELEAXRRATEEE
looking information. o

Annual Report 2018 £3% 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

(M)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as
loans and receivables, based on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise
trade and other receivables (Note 2.14), cash
and cash equivalents (Note 2.15), amount
due from a related party, short-term loan
to an associate, short-term bank deposits,
structured bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREEBERFTESHBREE(4E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 BIKEE (&)
2115 B2 -F—+F+=-H
=1 —HERAZ G5 HE
(&)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(if)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
‘Other gains — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to

(if)

EARANGE
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HRERHEZEER
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BRERPIMEFRX -
MBEERWIURER
ERENEREMRE
HERAEBCERE
BREMKXE D E R N E
WEF AR LRER Al
EMBEEREATE
FAABECMBEER
BRILAFEIE-BEX
REBKREERNBE
IR R BOE A% 8 $H K AN D
BE o

M2~ FER ARS8
BEEIDHEZRAFE
EPELZBRAREL
HE R AR S W R A K
[Htphm—FEI P2
Bl e A FEF AR
ZHIEEEMES: 2 KX
ERANEBEWEGKEZ
T HE S B AR A W R

receive payments is established. TKHPERE S E MK A
MR

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as

PTEAUHLEEEER
HEKEFZAFEZ

available for sale are recognised in other 2HPREMEIEKAR
comprehensive income. MR e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBEERTESHBREE(4E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 BIKEE (&)
2115 B2 -F—+F+=-H
=S —HERAZ G HE
(&)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(iii)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(iii)

Impairment (continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2017 and
2018.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.17

2.18

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

220 EMRIEEFREHR (H)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RHEERTFERIRFEE (])

(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued) 221 BEERR (&)

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) RUKZEMT(E)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, RéraWERANZEERBFH
recognised in the consolidated income statement in X HER 2 R ER G E B H
employee benefit expense, except where included RS (5T A& EKAE R
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the N RBAFEREERBAE
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee £z FREBAEFLM - @A
service in the current year, benefit changes, HH) BB RS-
curtailments and settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in BERG K AR REIE SR
profit or loss. e
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays RAEHRKTEMS  AEH
contributions to publicly or privately administered MAAERLAREERZR
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, KRB ET EI1EH S8 6l - & 493k
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no B RN R R E
further payment obligations once the contributions AEBEBEAEMAREFH#
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as HRE I NEERAEEER
employee benefit expense when they are due. FMFAE o

(b)  Termination benefits (b)  AUFHEFY

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 WREEERIEGHBFEERE (H)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued) 221 BEERR (&)
(c)  Bonus plans (c) TEALETE)
The Group recognises a liability and an expense REBRE-GLAKX (ZEA
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes A EIRR B FE AR R 48 T
into consideration the profit attributable to the BiEg) REAEREBERHA
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. X AREBRENHRELBA
The Group recognises a provision where BOIEEHETEERER
contractually obliged or where there is a past f& o
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
(d)  Employee leave entitlements (d) EEEZFEH
Employee entitlements to annual leave are EEFHEFRIENNEE=Z
recognised when they accrue to employees. ERER-EEZRBRES S
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity BREEREBR T SR -
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
2.22 Provisions 2.22 BB
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A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RHEERTFERHFEE (K])

(continued)

2.23 Revenue and other income recognition

(a)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product is on board
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

2.23 BRKWERHE AU A

(a)

HERY
HEREmZ EH EERE
(BNSEEE mIA AR ) R4
BRI EEPEMEMIARE
TTEMERER - RERBXAE
BREORXNIAEEEREE
BREBMARANRECEEK
BREBEEP-

KEHEEMmZWaEDER
HERAKNIETE ZER - AR H
EDNRERNKECOR Z1E
EHIREL (REMIBIES —
) O BBETERGESTF

IE o
No contract liability and right to the returned goods HARIREBTERELRESD
are recognised as insignificant amount of returns BERE HUTEBERENEE
are expected based on previous experience. KR ERER -

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

223 BRUEREMBA (F)

2.23 Revenue and other income recognition (continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company'’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.
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A M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.27 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi
against US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations, which the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2018, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$663,000 (2017: US$1,246,000) lower/
higher (2017: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

At 31 December 2018, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$6,000 (2017: US$18,000) lower/higher
(2017: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of non-Renminbi-denominated trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other payables in subsidiaries
which use RMB as functional currency.
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A M RRM

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$21,349,000 (2017: US$17,427,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$14,817,000
(2017: US$17,970,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
Us$91,000 (2017: US$74,000) lower/higher
(2017: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, short-term loan to an
associate, other receivables and amount due from
related parties.

(i) Risk management
The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, trade receivables,
short-term loan to an associate, amount due
from a related party and other receivables
included in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2018 and 2017, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 15 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The adoption of the simplified
expected loss approach under HKFRS 9 has
not resulted in any additional impairment loss
for trade receivables as at 1 January 2018.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 month before 31 December 2018
or 1 January 2018 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of the
countries in which it sells its goods to be the
most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in this factor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be close to zero.

As at 31 December 2018, 1 January
2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9) and 31
December 2017, the loss allowances for
trade receivables were US$498,000 and
US$511,000, respectively. Management are
of opinion that that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the
incurred loss model. Individual receivables
which were known to be uncollectible

were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. For these receivables the
estimated impairment losses were recognised
in a separate provision for impairment. The
group considered that there was evidence of
impairment if any of the following indicators
were present:

J significant financial difficulties of the
debtor

o probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and

. default or late payments (more than 30
days overdue).

Receivables for which an impairment provision
was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

Other receivables, loan to an associate and
amount due from a related party

The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is zero.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(c)

3 HMEERRTHE(R)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEREBEE (&)
Liquidity risk (c) mEHELEE
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's HRAEEEBEREHR
business, the Group ensures that it maintains FoAEEBEREEFTEH
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity eMEEENENERBES
requirements. FEko
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the EREREERReRE B
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn TREENRBE S REENR
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents FIEA - BREAFEHRERWY
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's fﬁgmﬁlﬁﬂfﬁ%&fﬁ/\%fﬁ%
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected WA REEFT A HE - E 5
liquidity requirements and its compliance with ERBARBHZRDESS
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains KR EETEREZEZER
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed NERE TN IR S RHEEIA
lines of funding from major financial institutions REFZUBEEAGERMR
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and WES NENERIBARRE
longer term. HonsEeFmFeo
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TYERBIEEEBEEHE)H
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based A THRSASEE 2T B8
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BEoREBEINHAEANETS
date to the contractual maturity date. The M-RNEBRPRBEZSEAE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HARFTHERERE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between Between

Tyear 1and2years 2and5years  Over5 years Total

-Eh -FZME  WEZIF BBRE &%

US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

FEn SE SE FEn FEn
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\§

T-A=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (KT 21,007 8,280 8,340 = 37,627
Trade payables JERE 5 20,875 - - - 20,875
Other payables and accruals ~ EHERR E&Fﬁgﬂ% 7,056 - - - 7,056
Amount due to a related party EEEEA L7 1,391 - - - 1,391
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&
+-h=+-8

Bank borrowings (Note) BB (M) 16,256 9,161 0,195 1,200 36,812
Trade payables EHESRR 15,772 - - - 15,772
Other payables and accruals ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ)ﬂ 8,860 - - - 8,860
Amounts due to related parties fEfEEEA LA 1,660 - - - 1,660
Note: B &
The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings ﬁl%ﬁ EHRBEREEESIHARME

up to their respective maturities.

TTRERMZFIES-

Annual Report 2018 3% 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RRM

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings
and current borrowings.

During 2018, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2017, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were

MERBRER (&)

3.2

EXEHE

AEEERES ZBRRREARE

B BB BRI E 28T - A

RBEREROR N SEMBRERSS
wRAE  UREF BB ERNE

BABDEARKA

RTHRFAREERGERE AREA
BEREIRN TRRZBESHE Mk
RBEERN BOHBROHIHEERE
VAR, BE (R 75 o

HENHEMAR] - AEEAEE
BELESEEERER -zt Xig
HABEEREBERMIZARTEER
AL‘M@EE/\%&;E HoREEERF
//IL i)j{ /)IL @J {El %

RIZE—N\F AEEZRBKHE_FT
—tFRNEER B EFE
EBEHERAEEBAKFE R -_ZE—N\

as follows: FRZFE—EF+ZA=+—8HZ
BEEBGBLENT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEIT
Total bank borrowings (Note 19) BIRITIEE (MH5E19) 36,166 35,397
Owners’ equity (including non- WA AR (BEFA
controlling interest in equity) a2 IR ) 286,682 282,583
Gearing ratio EEBGELE 13% 13%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The carrying value of the long-
term other receivables approximates its fair value as it
was estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 9).
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam, Taiwan and Cambodia. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group's entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The Group
presents its operating segment results (below), based on the
information reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
and used to make strategic decisions. This information includes
segment revenue, segment capital expenditure, segment assets,
segment non-current assets, other than financial instruments,
and segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments, and segment liabilities are
based on the geographical location of the assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$43,301,000 (2017:
US$45,843,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment. No other customers individually contribute 10% or
more of the Group's revenue (2017: same).

(a) Segment revenue

SHEH

TREERRECHEREBUITES

WITEEEHAKE 2 BR M ER AR Z
RARDHER AEBERBEIRZER
REMBHL AN EREREZEMZ
JIEESEES (RTX) - WEEHBRE
DEPMES D EBE AR DRPEE - 0B
FRBEE (ERTAKRIN o HEE-

FTERERREFENMIEEASMEE
%o AR E D S AEE 2 ME R - 95k
mAEFPAEMRE S D EHE AL
DEEE -DHIERDEE (R T AR
M ESBEFERILEERBEMTHE

e

IBLERARETERBE MR D AAE
EzWEREREEFEHERE -Eit o
MERRERNKEER -

Uz 49543,301,000 T (—F—+
145,843,000k 70) BRIR B B AR Z B —
INBRE - RIBUEKEW®RE AEES
HoMEEMRABEA A A EREKE
10%E A F (ZFB—+F:HERA) -

(a) 7Bz

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FErx FExT

By geographical location: BB E B D
Vietnam i Eg 177,753 162,986
Japan HR 63,015 64,199
The PRC H 39,004 29,056
America EH 20,327 16,761
Taiwan ag 17,335 10,630

ASEAN member countries REBKEH

(other than Vietnam) (TBiEBE) 31,593 31,792
Other regions H b [ 7,745 7,381
356,772 322,805
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SHEH (W)
(a) Segment revenue (continued) (a) DUz (HF)
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—LF
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
By product nature: REMEEGE D
MSG/GA KK AEB 231,502 220,491
Modified starch/Native starch BRI KRR 43,955 34,005
Specialty chemicals B Em 32,552 29,012
Fertiliser and feed products AE 87K} EE o 21,165 18,425
Others Hit 27,598 20,872
356,772 322,805
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—LF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Timing of revenue recognition e 2 T SR B
At a point in time I — R 356,772 322,805
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities BEH) B EERZ W
The Group receives payments from certain customers REBRETAYNIKEE TEF
in advance of the performance under the contracts. Z TR e NRETRP AN RS HAf
The following table shows how much of the revenue ReWz=HEESNBEEERE
recognised in the current reporting period relates to Ee

carried-forward contract liabilities.

Year ended

31 December
2018

BZE
—E2-N\F
+=—HA=+—H
IHFEE
US$°000
FTEx

Revenue recognised that was FAFVIEHEEES
included in the contract liabilities Z B RN
balance at the beginning
of the year 1,296
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(b)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEWEHE (1)
Capital expenditures (b) EAZH
2018 2017
—E-)\F —E—tF
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam R 25,396 20,404
The PRC rh 121 135
Cambodia R E 3 -
25,520 20,539

(c)

Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on

where the assets are located.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets.

B TR A B P T 5 B
55

BB

EAXHBEAEME BE MR
B LERARERENEE-

Assets () EBE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam i 308,623 288,357
The PRC i 45,544 48,424
Hong Kong BE 12,358 21,188
Taiwan =N 704 688
Singapore 2N 487 44
Cambodia R 89 -

Total assets per consolidated HEBEEBERMT

balance sheet EEBE 367,805 358,701

Total assets are attributed to segments based on where

the assets are located.

BEREDRBEEMELT DA
2%

DEBe
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A M RRM

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEH(#E)
() Assets (continued) () ¥EE (&)
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the ME BERZEREEENEED
management at the operating segment level. The HEEER - UTASEEDHNIE
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation, MENVEEEE E RE BN
impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense FXMEGEBE DR MO E -
and share of profit of an associate for each operating
segment.
Amortisation Share of
and Income tax profit of
depreciation expense an associate
BB E QR
B RITE Frigsmx = R
Us$'000 Us$’'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET
2018 —E-N\f
Vietnam A= 17,648 4,361 44
The PRC i 965 242 -
Others HAh - 10 -
18,613 4,613 44
2017 —E—tF
Vietnam o] 17,182 4,125 205
The PRC i 1,183 433 -
Others Eih - 12 -
18,365 4,570 205
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mEBEHRRME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWBEE(E)
(d) Non-current assets, other than financial instruments, (d) BRUBEIZFFRBEE (SRMIA

by location: BROM) -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Us$‘000 Us$'000
SRET FET
Vietnam i 151,333 141,501
The PRC A 17,029 18,778
Cambodia RIEEE 3 -
Total st 168,365 160,279

(e) Liabilities (e) EBfE
2018 2017
—E-)\F —ZT—+F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam A= 72,860 65,768
The PRC H 3,751 4,604
Hong Kong A 3,338 3,316
Taiwan & 1,108 2,382
Singapore 3 an 46 48
Cambodia RIEEE 20 -
Total liabilities per consolidated GEEEBEXRMAT

balance sheet BEBRE 81,123 76,118
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

+ th 5 A 4
AEBER T ERE 2 EREREEENZ
BNRE EREFEITET

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January mn—H—H 2,042 2,321
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 23) - s {50 A e 8
(FFE23) (52) 61)
Transfer to non-current ERERELE Y
assets held for sale (Note 8) EmBEE (MI5E8) - (360)
Exchange differences PEH =58 (98) 142
At 31 December W+—A=+—H” 1,892 2,042

In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”), subsidiaries established and operating
in the PRC, have each been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in 2042
and 2060, respectively.

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged in
administrative expenses.
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A M HRR MR

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BRERRE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
EEIR nE  RBERER RE BAERB At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TERT S TER SE I TER
At 1 January 2017 R=EB-t%-A-H
Cost BA 7,243 109,735 439,123 9,046 18,945 584,092
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (73,977) (338,552) (6,453) (17,640) (436,622)
Accumulated impairment ZiRA - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount FHFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-+f
TZAZ+-BLFE
Opening net book amount EREFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Additions NE 15,535 68 3,864 447 548 20,462
Transfer L E (11,425) 1,473 9,876 - 76 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (HaE31) - (107) (341) (30) M) (489)
Depreciation (Note 23) e (M23) - (3,012 (14,149) (652) (357) (18,170)
Transfer to non-current assets BRERBELEERDEE
held for sale (Note 8) (Hi5%8) - - - (5) ) (6)
Exchange differences ERZSB 3 395 125 21 8 552
Closing net book amount EREEFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
At 31 December 2017 R-Z-t%
+=A=t+-H
Cost A 11,356 107,730 447,891 9,199 19,393 595,569
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiTE - (73,155) (347,945) (6,825) (17,825) (445,750)
Accumulated impairment ZiPRE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-)\F
TZA=T-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Additions RE 22,628 152 1,875 410 455 25,520
Transfer [ E (15,332) 1,868 13,272 - 192 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (Fi31) - (30) (436) (5) (41) (512)
Depreciation (Note 23) e (Hfs23) - (3,386) (14,114) (583) (346) (18,429)
Exchange differences EREE (1) (305) (79) (15) 3) (403)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZB=1+-H
Cost A 18,651 108,862 460,387 9,322 19,749 616,971
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (75,988) (359,923) (7,141) (17,924) (460,976)
Accumulated impairment ZiRE - (1,100) (3,085) - 22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of US$17,220,000 (2017:
US$16,878,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$267,000
(2017: US$240,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$942,000 (2017: US$1,052,000) in administrative expenses.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$274,000 (2017: US$143,000) on qualifying
assets.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 5 September 2017, Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise
Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, to dispose of its land use right and property,
plant and equipment for a total consideration of US$645,000
(RMB4,352,000). The relevant land use rights and property,
plant and equipment amounted US$360,000 and US$6,000
respectively were presented as non-current assets held for
sale as at 31 December 2017. The transaction was completed
during 2018.
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7

ME -BERBRM ()

HERM 17,220,000 (- B —+ 4
16,878,000 JT) * 267,000kt (= &
— -+ % :240,000% 7T ) &942,000% 7T

—ZE—+14:1,052,000%70) B DRI
HERAN - HERDHEATURITEREAL
IR o

FR - AEBERGEREENEER
AR274,000E 7T (= Z — 44 : 143,0003
TL)EFTE AR

BEHESERDEE
R-ZE—+tENARA WRKASE
EEARARE—EZBUE=FEIN —
B AR (E645,000% 7T (AR
4,352,0007T) (& H T F A Y
¥ BELELRHB RN-_ZE—+FE+-H8
=+—H £% 55 /360,000% T &
6,000% T2 R L E MIEA LD E &
EREBEEZINABELEERDEE -
ZXGER T N\FERK-
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A M HRR MR

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 ELEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
BE BHRER [ &t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—t&-HF-H
Cost B 8,042 1,931 12,189 22,162
Accumulated amortisation ZErEH - (1,388) (12,097) (13,485)
Net book amount REFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z-+t%
TZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FOREZE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Additions NE - 77 - 77
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BHERE (ME23) - (124) (10) (134)
Exchange differences EXESE 450 - - 450
Closing net book amount FRKREFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tfF
+=ZA=+-H
Cost AR 8,492 2,008 12,189 22,689
Accumulated amortisation g 3 - (1,512) (12,107) (13,619)
Net book amount EEFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\F
+=ZA=+-BLLEE
Opening net book amount FNRETE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BERX (H:123) - (122) (10) (132)
Exchange differences EXEE (372) - - (372)
Closing net book amount FREEZE 8,120 374 72 8,566
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
tZA=t+-H
Cost P A 8,120 2,008 12,189 22,317
Accumulated amortisation RErEH - (1,634) (12,117) (13,751)
Net book amount REFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. B R P AITBFA S -
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A M RRM

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9 ®|iEWE(H)
Impairment tests for goodwill: PR E R
Goodwill is attributed to the Group’'s CGUs according to PR DIRIE AR E S E D E o i = FEUE
operating segment. BB
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
bR A MR R
HEEK LELE S &5t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-NF+-A=+—H 7,390 730 8,120
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=—A=+—H 7,762 730 8,492
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on WEIR B 2 e S5 ATEEA
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash BEZAIANEBEE %ZSHETHRENRER
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by EH & AF P REESE 2BRBATR
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond CREBAET - BERAFHIBERE
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated FANTH2 2B REEE (A
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do A) BEETERNREESBEMME
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG BrRBEBEBAEBHRATFEIERE

related business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of AT ERBEKEEERRIR S B RHE
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows. ZEREEZEERRM T
The PRC
B El
2018 2017
—E2-N\fF —E—L£F
Growth rate in sales volume HESWLRE -11% - 6.3% 0% — 10%
Growth rate in sales price HEBRERE 0% - 7.4% 0% — 1%
Gross margin EF=E 12.9% - 27.5% 18.7% - 29.9%
Other operating costs per annum BEHEMEERAE
(US$'000) (F=71) 2,005 - 2,297 2,152 - 2,467
Long term growth rate REIE R X 3% 3%
Discount rate S 12.5% 12.5%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in— use
calculations exceeds carrying value by US$1.6 million. A
decrease in annual sales volume growth rate of 3.6%, a
decrease in annual sales price growth rate of 3.7%, a decrease
in gross margin of 1.5%, an increase in annual operating costs
of 9%, a fall in long term growth rate of 1.8% or an increase
in discount rate of 1.2%, all changes taken in isolation, would
remove the remaining headroom.

EmiERE (8])
HEBMERZTSAFEAMTFHFER
T EREBERALEEBEHEMSHRE
MRS - HEENERESAFER
MW FeFEEE TEARARTERS
B YEA RRMBRER-

EREDREBEXERAEET SRR
EHEEREENK - TAIFTRXTIRHR
A R AR A 2 0 B0 2 5 E LR o

H At 48 & B T BRERER & BB L 6 B T K
oW TBEHEENHEBENRBES -E
BEEANAREBRBRAZEXAS I
PBR EFHEL A  BEEh A ERMRE
IR EHELEE KA - L 3 E R
SR AFEAMNFOLERA -

RPBERIBHEEEE 2HEM S 2R
HEEREEMSITLDKSREBELREE
1.6BEXT FHEBEREMEE3 6%
FHEBRRETRIT% EMET R
1.5% FEEURAERI% KREERET
BR1.8% 3 T I K I R 1.2% P A 98 L 3
2 B E I 5 B R SRR EE o
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10 MELFE
THARZBE-NF+ZA=+—RHZ=E

10 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2018:

L] PNGIEER

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
EMEL/ RIS rEEREL  FEREERAZ
8 UREEERER TEEBREEHY BRT/BRRAFE EERLA EERLA
Directly held:
BRHE
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited RERLES EBRRERR 100R B REE1FTH
([RBRRES]) LER
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. RERLHES EERRERR 100R EREMEIFTH
Indirectly held:
EERE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. s ERMBEREER 61,109,000 T
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. s ERMBREER 20,177,000% T
Veedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 167,871,967 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
KA (M) RAERAR i EERAERBERERRTME 167,871,967 G RE A
EERRAERDIRER Bkl
BERE AR ZUHERH
BERR R RERTHA
Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise PRC, limited liability Inactive US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Co., Ltd. company Registered capital
WRKASEEZERAA PE EREALT TEax 17,200,005 T
HMER
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and 15$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
LERALEERARA PE BREARA ETEBKREERE BHREKSER  9,800,000% 7
# HMER
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and 15$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
EFGRARRERAR PE-FREERA ETEBRREERE BOREKER 20,270,005 7T
# EMER
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
EMABELNESBRAR RE-EREERA EHEEEAZERIXER 254,000% 7T
EMER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -
and biochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd REF RRBENSEERAAME  £LER  FHEZ£2,640,000,000
RABRAIXERHERLA o]
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11 NEEBEAFIZRE BTFHMELFZ
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE EHER
(a) Investment in an associate (a) REELATNZRE
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows: REE AR ZIREZEBWT
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
As at 1 January ®n—H—H 3,555 3,350
Capital contribution Mg ARNEE (MTFE)
to an associate (note) 2,520 -
Share of post-tax profit of JE(REE & R Al
an associate B B0 12 5 A 44 205
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H1 6,119 3,555
Note: P&
There was a capital contribution of US$2,520,000 to an B [ —fE B & A 8% #2,520,0003% 7T
associate. The capital contribution was made in proportion to &é)’b&ﬁﬂﬁv%‘?ﬁ ZIRRELLBIEDL - &
the shareholding portion of the associate, so there is no change IRFREEE REBERTZRETS
in the percentage of shareholding in the associate after capital Lt A 2 & o
contribution for the year.
Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 RZF—NEFER_ZE—+F+=A
December 2018 and 2017: EJF* H - EAH*Q%M"TZ&éf ME
T
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=g EMREIER ERITRAFE BEEEE% FEFE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMERZERERAR H=HS 21,027,559 G R E 30 HE=E
B1ZETZKMm
The associate is principally engaged in real estate ZBMERNTEERNYEREFME
development in Vietnam. B
Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company EMBERZERER AT ALART
and there is no quoted market price available for its BHE R I 8 135 HAE
shares.
There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 rEBERZBERARZERESR
(2017: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group’s 112,000 0 (ZF — t F:
investment in the associate. 2,632,000% 70 ) 2 B ARFALE -
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FEMBHRRME
11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11 RBEBLATFZEI KFRELATFZ
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) ERR®(HE)
(a) Investment in an associate (continued) (a) REELATZRE (&)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information B 75 B R E 2 AR
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
SFESTE FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—A—BzEEFRE 11,850 11,166
Increase in share capital f& 238 hn 8,400 -
Profit for the year F 1A 5 A 146 684
Net assets as at 31 December R+=-ZA=+—8B=z
EEFE 20,396 11,850
Interest in an associate (30%) REEE RN A 2 = (30%) 6,119 3,555
(b) Short-term loan to an associate (b) #HFHEQTAZEHER
As at 31 December 2018, there is a short-term loan to RZFE—-NF+ZA=+—H 47T

an associate of US$120,000 (2017: US$120,000) which is
unsecured, bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated

in US$ and is repayable on demand.
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RE M B EmRME
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 BENESZEMIA
2018 2017
—B-N\F —FF
Uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEBATTEZ
M EE
— Long-term other receivables (Note 14) — R HRH fh fE W sk0E
(M&E14) 725 1,307
— Trade receivables (Note 14) —EUWE 5 R
(M5E14) 33,151 31,651
— Loan to an associate (Note 11(b)) —HTHERAZER
(Ht3E11(b)) 120 120
— Other receivables — current portion — H b JE W FR IR
—BVEREE 9 2,599 2,474
— Amount due from a related party — R B REE AT RIB
(Note 34(d)) (M 5E34(d)) 1,191 242
— Structured bank deposits (Note 15) —RERBERITER
(M3E15) 8,888 3,903
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 15) — R HRITIER
(M&E15) 15,342 16,063
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) —“BakReFEYD
(MH&E15) 34,215 49,679
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet BEBAEBBRATZ
BE 96,231 105,439
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEN AT EZ
=R
— Trade payables (Note 18) —JENE SR
(M&E18) 20,875 15,772
— Other payables and accruals — H fth JE T FUE &
st & 7,056 8,860
— Amounts due to related parties —ENEBEATRIE
(Note 34(d)) (K7E34(d)) 1,391 1,660
- Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITEE (ME19) 36,166 35,397
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet #ABEBBERARZ
af 65,488 61,689
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERME
13 INVENTORIES 13 &8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FE7
Consumables SEFE M 7,184 6,308
Raw materials R4 48,078 45,820
Work in progress & 5,692 4,914
Finished goods IR fh 30,468 26,546
91,422 83,588
Less: Provision for impairment losses on W E R EE R
inventories (320) (720)
91,102 82,868
The cost of inventories of US$238,143,000 (2017: FERZ238,143,000% T (ZF— 5
US$202,763,000) has been charged in cost of sales. 202,763,000%70) B st ASHER A o
The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included BERBEERNARZFEREME RERD
in cost of sales are amounted to US$30,000 (2017: Nil) and D A1 A30,000 kL (ZE—+F:HE) R
US$400,000 (2017: Nil), respectively. 400,000E T (ZE—+F &) -
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e M HRRME

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BRESERRAMEHRRIE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from third parties EWE=FEZER 33,649 32,162
Less: loss allowance B ESEE (498) (511)
Trade receivables - net ERE SRR —FHE 33,151 31,651
Prepayments T FRIB 9,672 5,614
VAT recoverable U e g E R 1,194 1,263
Other receivables H b fE W SRR 3,324 3,781
47,341 42,309

Less: non-current portion of B E At FE U RIE 2
other receivables JEBNHEAEL 5 (725) (1,307)
Current portion BNERH 2 46,616 41,002

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values.

Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the
purchase of raw materials. Other receivables as at 31 December
2018 include the outstanding balance in relation to the disposal

of Ha Tinh plant (Note 24).

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on

delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers and it is subject to the satisfactory results
of credit assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based

on invoice date is as follows:

REEEWE R E b R 2 BR
EEEEAFEBS-

T E E BAE SR R A B A B 3R
B-RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H H
JE W kT8 B 3 78 B8 O BRI 2 R AR 3K
B (MFE24) -

BRBZERZEEMNFERNRE
60X - AEEAAETEFREBREER
H MEXBRREEFGEZREER E
WESERRERAMZREDITOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

Uss$'000 US$'000

FEn FET

0 — 30 days 0£30K 21,372 18,627
31 -90 days 31E90K 10,870 12,161
91 - 180 days 91E180K 789 667
181 - 365 days 181£365K 251 189
Over 365 days 365K LA E 367 518
33,649 32,162
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A M RRM

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 BERSHERRAMEHRRIT ()
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their ERREERFECGBEE  HERmE
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair WRABEEANFEMES-
values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2017 and RZE—tFRZFE-NF+ZA=+—
2018 are the carrying amounts of trade receivables mentioned HEEE 2 & XEERR A M E 5 EIKHK
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. BrEEE AEETEFERANERD
YEH R -
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are JEUE ZER N H b JE UL FR T8 2 BRI (B 1%
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam Dong BEE 19,680 20,299
us$ ETT 18,333 17,152
New Taiwan dollar e 16 112
Renminbi AR 5,407 3,507
Others Efih 3,905 1,239
47,341 42,309
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 BERZHERRAMEHRRIT ()
Loss allowance of trade receivables ERE SRR ZEREE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to AEEERBEMBREERFEIREG L
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected FEGERHEEER RMBEEKRES

loss allowance for all trade receivables.

ERRBBEHEERE-

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 RZE-NEFE+-_A=+—HZEZEK
December 2018 reconciles to the opening loss allowance as REZFREBEREREVEERE ZH
follows: BRI :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
Us$’000 US$'000
TEx FET
Opening loss allowance as RZZE—+tH—H—8"
at 1 January 2017, —E—+F+=A
31 December 2017 under =+—HRE

HKAS 39 and 1 January 2018
under HKFRS 9

(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance
recognised in consolidated income
statement during the year

EB G ERE395 &
RZZE—N\F—AF—H
RIEE B I 53R & %A

FOTR 2 FHE A 511 386
RFRERE Wk PR

ZEEEE CRL)

20 (13) 125

Closing loss allowance

Rt+tZA=+—HB2

as at 31 December FREERE 498 511
The creation of provision for impaired receivables have been MO RE WA E HEREREBE R A
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income REWERMITHAZ R - REERNR
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are B SR — RN TE BRI B B 23R S I
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering fH e
additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not FENE 5 AR 30 B H Ath FE IR IB N 2 B Ath 48

contain impaired assets.

MENBERDBEEE-

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date REER mefEEREE EEERE
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned WEHER GHEE NEET RS ILFEEE
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. Al R B
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A M RRM

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 HeRBeEEY ZRMEBITER
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK REHBITER
DEPOSITS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Us$'000 Us$'000
SPEDw FET
Short-term bank deposits with original JREIBIE REB=A
maturity over three months 2B EIR TR 15,342 16,063
Structured bank deposits HEEMERITIFR 8,888 3,903
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 34,215 49,679
58,445 69,645

As at 31 December 2018, cash at bank of US$34,003,000
(2017: US$49,447,000) and bank deposits of US$24,230,000
(2017: US$19,966,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of
Us$14,950,000 (2017: US$14,106,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$38,864,000 (2017: US$38,257,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and structured bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

WR-E—-NE+-A=+—0 #R1T
I £34,003,000F 0 (= —EF:
49,447,000% 7T ) K& #R 17 17 324,230,000
Ex (ZZF—+%:19,966,000% 70 ) E R
SEREK -

PE AP B4R THR = 2 & ©14,950,000% 7T

—T—+4:14,106,0005 5T ) K [E H
FRTTEE P 2 & £38,864,000% T (=&
—+ 4 :38,257,000% ) BB THE K
75 5 BT B9 SINE B I 5 e o

AEBZREMACEFEY BHRRTHF
RAREBERTERIRATESE:

2018 2017

ZE-N\F —ET—+F

uss$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam Dong M A 18,733 24,485
uss e 24,526 29,119
Renminbi AR 14,845 15,738
Hong Kong dollar BT 91 154
New Taiwan dollar ek 247 146
Others HAb 3 3
58,445 69,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRMEE
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 BeRBASFRED BEEBTER
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK REMBITHFER (&)
DEPOSITS (continued)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end REEHR - AEE 2 BRFNEH I 0
of the reporting period were as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Short-term bank deposits with original REBARBEB=EAZ
maturity over three months RHRITER 5.8% 4.3%
Structured bank deposits EBMERITIFR 3.7% 4.2%
16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 BE=Xx

Authorised ordinary shares

FEEEER
Par value Number
uss$ of shares Uss$’000
HEXR RHBEE FEn
At 1 January 2017, RZE—tF—A—H"
31 December 2017, —T—tF+-A=+—H"
1 January 2018 and —TZ-N\F-A-HK
31 December 2018 —Z-NF+=ZA=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
ERTRBREEER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Uss$'000
HEXR ROBEE FEn
At 1 January 2017, RZZE—+F—A—H"
31 December 2017, —T—tF+-A=F+—H"
1 January 2018 and “T-\F—A-Bk
31 December 2018 ZE-NE+TZA=1+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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A M RRM

17 RESERVES 17 &
Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve earnings Total
(Note (a))  (Note (b))
RAEE EXRE AHRE EERE  REEN nE
(PEr@@)  (BEEE(D))
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET TER TER TER TET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF
—HR—H 47,358 10,885 79,994 783 127,287 266,307
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year AEE RN - - - - 19,061 19,061
Other comprehensive income  Hftt2HE KA
Currency translation differences [ % Z & - 2,229 - - - 2,229
Total comprehensive income  2HKALE - 2,229 - - 19,061 21,290
Total transactions BEBACARZE
with owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) B S (FiEk26) - N - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF
+-A=+—H 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 270,182
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F
—A—8H 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 270,182
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year RERER - - - - 14,285 14,285
Other comprehensive income Ett2EHKA
Currency translation differences  [E % %3 - (2,057) - - - (2,057)
Total comprehensive income  2HERALE - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228
Total transactions BREBACEARZE
with owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) BRI E (Hi326) - - - - (11,282) (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reserve  EHELE % Tt - - - 45 (45) -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+-A=+—H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR MR

17 RESERVES (continued)

18

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the group reorganisation completed on 26 December
2002 and the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

17 EiE
B

(a)

(b)

(#&)

BOHRE

ARENEHEREREN_-_ZT_F
ToAZTAREEREESEMKE
M AR B AEE KRR EEAR
BRI R BT ZRAEENEZR -

EEREE

B D AERERA FFMNZ10%EEE
AEE BEERNERERAAEMERZ
50% - &ARBIMEBIIE AR ARSI
PRAEHEZFBEBRIIE QR ER - 7
RABHEARESARBTRAREMER

%9250/0 °©

18 ENESER EiBRARKMEMS

PAYABLES ®IR
2018 2017
=Y Wy T
Us$'000 US$'000
TEx FET
Non-current FEENHA
Long-term environmental provision RHIRSEERB 387 233
Current BN 58
Trade payables JETE B R 20,875 15,772
Accruals fEEt & A 8,567 8,089
Payable of purchase of property, ENBEME BHEK
=L N 4 =G Eod
plant and equipment and R fF DA B S SR AR R BRIR
construction costs 2,517 4,127
Receipts in advance B IR - 1,296
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) AHEE (Hika) 1,993 -
Other payables Hopth FE S 3RIB 3,797 3,997
37,749 33,281
Total trade payables, accruals and J@“ﬁ%j%ﬁ%%
other payables st B A EZ
H Al & A BROR A2 R 38,136 33,514
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A M RRM

18 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 18 BEFBZER BiiBHAREMEM
PAYABLES (continued) BRI (#)
At 31 December 2018, the ageing of trade payables based on RZE-NF+_A=1+—H ENFES
invoice date is as follows: RRREZAHIERENT

2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—L+F

Us$°000 Us$'000

TER FET

0 - 30 days 0E30K 19,232 13,912
31 - 90 days 31290k 1,634 1,567
91 — 180 days 91E 180K = 111
181 — 365 days 181E 365X — 142
Over 365 days 365K 9 40
20,875 15,772

AREBZENEZRN B ERNMEMD
FENREZREER T E%HE:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

2018 2017
—2-NF —E—t%
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam Dong W E 19,569 15,473
Us$ ETT 14,561 11,935
New Taiwan Dollar A 1,091 1,040
Renminbi AR 2,709 3,515
Euro BT 22 1,129
Others Hi 184 422
38,136 33,514

(a) Contract liabilities (a) BHEE

AHNABIEERRINTERPZE
miHE 2 FAWIR S RN RE R - s
RERRXNTEFRER -

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.
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A M HRR MR

19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 SRITHESE
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Non-current FE BD HA
— Long-term bank borrowings —REIRITIER
- secured — B 19,189 23,160
- Long-term bank borrowings —REIRITIER
— unsecured — R 7,804 4,654
Less: current portion of long-term B RHRITERZ
bank borrowings BN HEAER & (11,296) (8,323)
15,697 19,491
Current B H#A
— Short-term bank borrowings — 5 BAERATIE
- secured — B 6,352 6,313
— Short-term bank borrowings — 5 BAERATIE K
— unsecured — KR 2,821 1,270
— Current portion of long-term —RERITIERZ
bank borrowings — secured BIEAEE 5 — B K 4 8,950 7,212
— Current portion of long-term —RERITIERZ
bank borrowings — unsecured BN ERER 5 — K 1 2,346 1,111
20,469 15,906
Total bank borrowings RITIEELREE 36,166 35,397
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REMBRERME
19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19 SRITHHE (&)
At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings were RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 AKEEZ
repayable as follows: BITEEBANATERREEE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Within 1 year —F KX 20,469 15,906
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMEF 7,966 8,867
Between 2 and 5 years MFERF 7,731 9,562
Over 5 years AFE - 1,062
36,166 35,397
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate RE|EHR AEEEEREHEN EE
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the PRANEMITERHOT:
reporting period are as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
Us$’000 US$'000
FTEx FET
Within 6 months 6fE AR 14,183 17,700
Between 7 and 12 months 721218 A 5,104 2,934
Between 1 and 5 years 1254 16,879 13,701
Over 5 years 5 F - 1,062
36,166 35,397
The carrying values of the Group's borrowings approximate AEBEEZEMEREATEMES -

their fair values.
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e P BHmRME
19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19 SITHE (§)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's RBEMR AEBEE 2 EERFF X0
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: ™~
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
uss$ eV 2.6% 2.2%
New Taiwan dollar e - 2.0%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are AEBREEmMHEEUTEEEE:
denominated in the following currencies:
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—L+F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEn TET
uss$ E 36,166 34,727
New Taiwan dollar ek - 670
36,166 35,397
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: AEBAUTHIEAESRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEn TET
Floating rate: R
— Expiring within one year — R —F R E|E 75,584 27,849
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F1&EIH 32,419 25,449
Fixed rate: ER
— Expiring within one year —R—F NI - 47,330
108,003 100,628
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has aggregate R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H A&EH
bank facilities of approximately US$144,169,000 (2017: AR BH 144,169,000 7T 7 iR 1T
US$154,396,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other BE (ZE— 154,396 OOO%E) e
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December ARTEE G EREM—RIBETR
2018 amounted to US$108,003,000 (2017: US$100,628,000). éf T NE+—A= + R
©#/108,003,000%7C (ZF—+F:
100,628,000%73)
The Group's bank borrowings of US$25,541,000 as at 31 AEBR -—_E—N\F+-_F=+—8H
December 2018 (2017: US$29,473,000) were secured by 525,541,000 0 (-8 — + &
corporate guarantees issued by the Company. 29,473,000F 7T) ZRTEBE YR AR A

BHRZARERIERER -
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A M RRM

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EEFFA
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary BERMSHIORBAEEUAAREEEERRN
differences under the liability method using the principal tax EERERNFENEJAA TR EZELT
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Ho
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: REEMEHEBEZDTHOT
2018 2017
—E2-N\fF —E—L£F
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPESTE FEx
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R BiB1218 A & U E
recovered after more than 12 months ZIEEFTSTBE 3,238 3,263
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as BEMBHEZESFREMAT
follows:
2018 2017
—E2-N\fF —E—L£F
Us$'000 Us$'000
SPESTE FET
At 1 January mn—H—H 3,263 3,416
Credited to consolidated income statement s A4RA WX
(Note 25) (Mi5E25) (25) (153)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 3,238 3,263
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities RERBETEHMEHEEREE (Rt kK
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting SHAR R BIA BARE R B0 45 B AT ) M Bh a0
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: e
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEBHEE

Accelerated tax depreciation

B IE T E
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—L+F
US$°000 Us$'000
TEx FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 4,526 4,196
Charged to consolidated income statement ~ R4R & Uz 2= WHIBR 129 330
At 31 December WR+=—RA=+—H 4,655 4,526
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e M HRRME

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 20 EEFRER(E)

Deferred income tax assets

EEFMEHEE

Other temporary differences

HiEEEE5E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
uUs$’'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—RA—H (1.263) (780)
Credited to consolidated income statement &F A&RAUWZFE (154) (483)
At 31 December W+=Z—A=+—8” (1,417) (1,263)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$924,000 (2017: US$910,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income
tax assets of US$490,000 (2017: US$2,611,000) in respect
of the unrecognised tax loss of US$1,959,000 (2017:
US$10,442,000). These tax losses for PRC corporate income
tax purposes will expire within five years. Tax losses of US$nil
(2017: US$2,323,000), US$19,000 (2017: US$5,110,000),
US$1,940,000 (2017: US$3,009,000) will expire within
one year, within two years and within three to five years
respectively.

RIBEREPEMSHE AEBETH
MBARE-_ZTNF—A—BEE4L
B3 F) - B DR TONRILE & 80 FliR
10% B Bt T M TEFORL o R AN 5 B 2
ZEPBEMBRARZRERSK  BAEM®
ZHBENB AR REFEE 2 G ERE
TARTTRER A R G oRAEE - I k%
B 7 FE M SR IR SE FT 1S R & f5924,000%
7L (ZZF—+%:910,000%7T) °

BEFMESHEEDNERH BN =N ER
IR PR ER B ) 5 R B A BT A BB MO B T S
BIEHER - NEBBBARERTIEEE
1,959,000% 7t ( =F —+ 4 : 10,442,000
FE0) 2 ARERBELEAS T E E A490,000
EnX(ZF—+E%:2,611,000%7T) ° 5
FREMCEMBHIMS 2ZEHMBBEER
AFREB-RBEBEBEEETL(ZE—+t
% :2,323,000%70) * 19,000F L (=&
—+%:5,110,000% T ) * 1,940,000% 7T
(== —+%:3,009,0003%7T) D 3R
—FRN MERAAR=ZERFAREH-
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A M RRM

21 REVENUE 21

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup,
MSG, soda and acid. Revenues recognised for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 were US$356,772,000 and
US$322,805,000 respectively.

2
REBREREEEERMANNA - £
ERERAERMD IEXER BIEZHER
WBAEREE KR RITRER-HE—
T-NEER-_FT—+F+-A=+—HL
FEMER 2 W=D B A356,772,000% 7T
%322,805,0003 7

22 OTHER GAINS - NET 22 Hfhlrsm— B8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Us$’000 US$'000
FTXx FET
Net exchange (losses)/gains BN (&), W58 (289) 647
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HEFIELHEZ
held for sales (Note 8) FEMREEEZ W
(KfaE8) 307 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment B2 IEE (426) (340)
Impairment of amount due from JE BT 88 R FE 4 R i =
the non-controlling interest of ZHIERE
a subsidiary (68) (847)
Sales of scrap materials EERHEE 454 596
Government grant BT 6 B 219 392
Others HAth 262 487
459 935
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23

EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BHEEESBEZHAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution ETABERA  HE R HA I K17
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: SXZAZATWT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Us$'000 Us$'000
SPESoT FET
Changes in inventories and FEKERERERE
consumables used (Note 13) (FF3E13) 238,143 202,763
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) & # 1 (K5£9) 132 134
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T feF AR 5 (BT 5E6) 52 61
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BLRD B &
— Audit services —ZER 345 345
— Non-audit services — IR BUR T 4 115
Depreciation on property, plant and M- BEREETE
equipment (Note 7) (F&E7) 18,429 18,170
Write-off of impairment of W EH T B RE
inventories (Note 13) (PF3E13) 30 -
Reversal of impairment of BEFERE
inventories (Note 13) (PBF3FE13) (400) -
Operating leases expenses in respect of EEHELH -BER
leasehold land, warehouses and offices PAELERLN 2 316 294
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EERFFHXZ (MiE28) 35,717 35,097
(Reversal of)/provision for loss allowance JEUN B 5 BR R E B S
of trade receivables (Note 14) (B @), 5H4% (HzE14) (13) 125
Technical support fee (Note 34(b)) T &2 (M5E34(b)) 2,180 2,181
Travelling expenses ZIRAX 1,629 1,484
Transportation expenses 3 iilha 8,262 9,400
Advertising expenses &R 3,898 2,962
Other expenses H sz 26,641 27,555
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $5&EMA - HE K
expenses and administrative expenses DAY RITHRA S B 335,365 300,686
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24

FINANCE INCOME - NET 24 MBWA-BEHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FXt FEIT
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 842 853
Unwinding of discount of iR B L fth JE MR IE 2 HTER
other receivable (Note) (BR3E) 87 -
Finance income B A 929 853
Interest expense on bank borrowings IRITIEEFR SHAX (1,106) (812)
Less: amounts capitalised B ABERAEEANMCRIE
on qualifying assets (Note 7) (MF5E7) 274 143
Discounting effect on non-current FE R B E b FEUCRIE 2
other receivable (Note) R E (M) - (135)
Finance costs 2 (832) (804)
Finance income — net BRI A —F 58 97 49

Note:

On 22 February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to dispose

of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant at a consideration
of US$3,400,000. The transaction was completed in 2017.

According to the payment schedule in the agreement, the
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2018 of US$2,040,000 (2017:
US$2,040,000) is repayable in the amount of US$680,000, US$680,000
and US$680,000 in 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. The repayment
of US$680,000 for 2018 was settled in January 2019. The balance is

non-interest bearing.
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A M HRR MR

25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25 FifsRAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated i F) 2 B I 3L Ul AT HE R B B R AR S
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing EEEMTEBRRCBITHEGE -

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income REFERmERNIR 2 AEH S8
statement represents:

2018 2017

—B-N\#& —F—tF

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEFEH 4,638 4,592
Under-provision of income tax MEFREMETEE SR

in previous years - 131

Total current tax BNERFIE 42 %8 4,638 4,723

Deferred income tax (Note 20) EIEATBIR (M5E20) (25) (153)

4,613 4,570
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25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

FRr@MAX (&])

R 5= BB P S75 A48 M) B0 BT S 750 B2 i 35 B¢
AALEETEZMEAREEKANERHR
Mt BEERBATE SHHN AT

2018 2017

—EB-N\fF —F—tF

USs$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Profit before tax B A A1 5 A 22,007 23,308
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% R15% 2B EFE 2 IE

(2017: 15%) (ZE—+%:15%) 3,301 3,496

Tax effects of different tax rates TEBEZRGTE 2,953 1,132

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R b2 480 204

Income not subject to tax HARB A - (1
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax AR ARG EE

losses (2,572) (672)

Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR - 131
Tax losses for which no deferred income WERREEMESHEE

tax asset was recognised 2B EE 451 290

Tax charge BIA ST 4,613 4,570

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan

The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 17%.
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26 DIVIDENDS 26 KR
A final dividend of US$6,750,000 that relates to the year ended EHEE_FT—tFt+ZA=+—H81
31 December 2017 was declared on 23 May 2018 and was paid FE 2 RKEAK BE6,750,000 TER -
in 2018 (2017: US$12,740,000). —NFAAZ+=RERER_ZT—-N\F
R (ZZ—+4:12,740,000% L) °
The interim dividends paid in 2018 was US$4,532,000 (0.298 RZZE-NFRERNOFPEHARKRE A
US cents per share) (2017: US$4,675,000, 0.307 US cents 4,532,000% 7T (9 %0.298% L) (==&
per share). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 — -+ % :4,675,000%& L FR0.3073%
December 2018 of 0.265 US cents per share, amounting to a i) - BREERREFAE LIR2UH
total dividend of US$4,042,000, is to be proposed for approval HENEBEE-_T—\F+ZA=+—081
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated FEHKRARE BFR0.265K( - KRB
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. BH3E4,042,0003E 7T « % FR A M B HREL
BERMRZEMNRE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.298 US cents EORAT8 B AR 2
(2017: 0.307 US cents) per Rk EmA%0.298% 1l
ordinary share (ZZF—t4F:
0.30731) 4,532 4,675
Proposed final dividend of 0.265 US cents  ##/& & B A% 8. & I
(2017: 0.443 US cents) per @ A%0.2653%1l
ordinary share (=T —+4:
0.443%All) 4,042 6,750
8,574 11,425
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RE N BHRME
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 HEERF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the ERERNBHNZRARGHE AEG
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i FIBR AR A B B 17 3 38 IR /9 0 4
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHEEE -

during the year.

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+F
Profit attributable to owners of the RRAEEB AFEAG R T
Company (US$'000) (F=m1) 14,285 19,061
Weighted average number of BT AR
ordinary shares in issue nEFHE (FR)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share GRELRBF
(US cents per share) (FRZEAM) 0.94 1.25
(b) Diluted (b) #58
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per HE-_Z - \FERZZET—+tF+=
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=+—HLFE aREEEET
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. B eRkiEERNEEREARRF
A -
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 ERBHMAX (AEEEHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2018 2017
—2-Nf —E—t%
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE& K RERR 29,002 28,128
Directors’ bonus (Note 30) TR (FIEE30) 1,445 1,921
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  ER & A
— E R REE 2,783 2,649
Other employee benefits H & 8 1= 7 2,487 2,399
35,717 35,097
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29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 29 EBEHBEFIEE
As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group BESHEEERRT NEEBRARZ
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in ZENFTZA=T— A AFERSS
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The AESRHTHEBMNRAKSTE -ZFE
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of BUEEBR-_TEENE+=_A=+—H2
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly PR 7% 4 B Ko B 1% AR 7 B EA BT 7518 A HAfRE &Y
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. FHRAFEL -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Us$‘000 US$'000
FTEx FET
As at 1 January w—HA—H 1,447 1,386
Current service cost BN AR AR 75 B 2 110 176
Payments NS (79) (115)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 1,478 1,447
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FERNFERERSKRNT
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+ fF
Discount rate IR E 9% 9%
Salary growth rate TEERX 3.0% -7.9% 3.0% - 8.0%
Expected years of service remaining T8 HA TR 82 AR 75 IR 14-17 years 14-18 years#F
Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective BER-TETNF—A—BRERZHE
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to HegRBE AEBELHBREEERE
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its REEZEEMHERBEEELHER R
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment ELZEHFTE AEEMEEMNRE
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The F-ZEHRFTNIBIABERAREER
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when R o

they are due.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

30 EFREARER(FELFES (5
622E )E383MFE AT (HEBEEEF
SEF )G ($622GE)REFEE L
HRAUREZESE)

(A) ESRERTBRAEZHE

B8
s

ERBBITHRAER ZFHBET

BEZE-NF+ZA=1+—-HL

FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Noteb)  benefit scheme undertakings Total
REZRRE
EBADNAL
B HHEARSEH
Fe EHRRNERN EARRHE  EpBHEAD
Name of Director j £33 ok (GEE) BERL (FsEb) MERE EhzHE#E A
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Ry Ry RV TEn Tin RS Ry
Executive Director B7ES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREESE 1 343 429 17 - - 790
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 53 £ 4 (fitEc) 1 380 416 17 - - 814
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 181 300 17 - - 498
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou ok - 181 300 17 - - 498
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABEEE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BREELE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BEEEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa (Note (i) AEEEE (H3HG) 1 - - 8 - - 9
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AkEEE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung-Fong (Note (i) #$2% % & (F i) - - - 4 - - 4
Total ag 12 1,085 1,445 176 - - 2,718
Note: MfsT -
(i) Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa resigned as independent non-executive 0) HEEF A ECBERDTIBLIEH
director of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018. TEEF BZE-\FtAZT+=
e AR -
(i) Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong was appointed as independent (il HEBRELCEZAAARDRRB

non-executive director of the Company with effect from 22
October 2018.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EXFRAREK(FELFES (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E )E383E AT (KBE=F
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SEFH)HA (F622GE)REFEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF mHRBAEZHE) (8)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHAEZHME (E)
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-_ZF—+tF+=-A=+—HL
FE:

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of director's
other services
in connection

with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
REFHE
ERADAG
Exm HEMBAREBH
Fia ERRENEN EREHE  ERBHEAR
Name of Director BEML k2 (HtiEa) [z (F3tb) R ERzEHEHE A
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEL TEn Ep REI TEL TEL TEL
Executive Director B7ES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREEEE 1 343 572 15 - - 931
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #5344 (fitEc) - 380 549 15 - - 944
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 181 400 15 - - 596
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou Bl EE - 181 400 15 - - 596
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BBREE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung ERREE 1 - - 14 - - 15
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 3 - - 14 - - 17
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray REEEE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa HETEE 1 - - 14 - - 15
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AkEEE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Total @ 10 1,085 1,921 158 - - 3174
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFRARER(FELFES (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E ) 383§ AT (HEEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SEH)HA ($622GE ) REFEE L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF THREAEZHE) (8)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHRAEZHME (E)
(continued)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESRFERESCZRY ESREELAQAY
(FRABENAREMBARNZES) EMBAREBEEN
BEXAREUzENS HitRBERXARERzEtMERE Ch Ch
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-0\F e 2 —E-N\§ 2+ F —E-N\F B o3
US$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000
TERT FET TER FET TERT FET
2,718 3,174 - - 2,718 3,174

Note: MfsE -

(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (a) YRF—RESNHFSRS
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in Bz ATREEEE AR
connection with the management of the affairs of the AREHBAREEEEN
Company or its subsidiary undertakings. H fth BR 75 1 & 2 A sk e U Y

(b)  Allowances and benefits in kind include travelling (b) EREYRTEEERE
allowance. B o

() The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate (0 REERTARATREAR,
disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has I #E BT BUABE B F BN 1T
been made. DR EE -
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2017: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2017: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2017: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2017: same).

EEEARER (FRAFGH (5
622F ) ¥3831F - AF (HBEEH
REH)RG (B622GE)RFEL
THRAUREZHE) (1)

(B) EZENKEARN
REBEEZ—N\F+=_A=+—H
IFFE TERAEERFEEEELAR
7] 8 E B A B K 3 TS AT R A A B
BEAEMBRARER (ZF—+F:
EIE

() EEZRLER
REBEZZ—-N\F+ZA=+—H
EFE VWEMESZFTRIEER
(ZE—tF:8A) -

(D) HREHESEHRBEMAZ=TREHHN
RE
RBE-Z-N\Ft+-A=+—H
HEE UERREESRE M@
F=ZTRHEAEB(ZZ—tF: 8
) °

() FEBUES ZZRFESEHNEA
BEERZEESNAREERAR
HANER EERREGBXENE
#®
RBEE-_Z-N\F+-_A=+—H
IFFE - UTENES IREEEE
HEEABRBRZEEENARE
ERAXBAELNER EERK
HZ 5 (ZZ—+F:ER) -

() EERXRS ZRPFERSHTHNERE
=
B P RE34PT I BE & SN M AN F R =K
REERERE R AARALEFT L
BAKEXBAMMARAESFE
EREEBEEEAEGNEMERN
R RHIXAHN(ZFT—tF:H
@) e
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2017: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above.

The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within
the following band:

30

EEEARER (FROFGH (H
622%F ) E3831F  AF (HFEEF
REH)RG (F622GE)REFEL
THRAUREHE) ()

(@)

TEBREMEAL
AEBRFEANREESHE AL
BENE (ZT—+F:WE)HIT
BEE REOMEER X220
[ Bk o

BIATZMERERNATHE:

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
US$130,001 — US$155,000 130,001 7T
- 155,000 7T 1 1
(H) Senior management remuneration by band (H REEZEIZ2SNEBEAESEHMH
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B 2 BE 7O LA TS EE [ -

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—L+F
US$55,000 — US$105,000 55,0003 7T

- 105,000 7T 2 4

US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,000% 7T
- 130,000F 7T 3 3

US$130,001 — US$155,000 130,001% 7T
- 155,000% ¢ 3 1
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31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 REReRERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EXKELEZHD
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
SREDw FET
Profit before income tax K BT 15 4 A 7 22,007 23,308
Adjustments for: FATIEE FE:
— Finance income (Note 24) — BRSO (KT3E24) (929) (853)
— Finance costs (Note 24) — s H (KisE24) 832 804
— Share of post tax profit of an — [ B QA
associate (Note 11) B B 15 2 )
(HaE11) (44) (205)
— Write-off of impairment of —MHFERE
inventories (Note 13) (FFEE13) 30 -
— Reversal of impairment of —REFERE
inventories (Note 13) (PfF3E13) (400) -
— Depreciation of property, plant —WE -BERRENE
and equipment (Note 7) (B7E7) 18,429 18,170
— (Reversal of)/provision for —EWE ZERIFRE
impairment of trade (BB, B
receivables (Note 14) (BFsE14) (13) 125
— Amortisation of intangible —EmEEEH
assets (Note 9) (FF3E9) 132 134
- Amortisation of land use rights — b {55 PR R 8E
(Note 6) (HizEe) 52 61
— Impairment of amount due —ER—RHKEBAFZ
from the non-controlling EERERRIELZ
interest of a subsidiary WAE (FF3E22)
(Note 22) 68 847
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWE KE &
plant and equipment B2 EE
(Note 22) (H¥7E22) 426 340
— Gain on disposal of assets held -~ REFELHEZEEZ
for sale (Note 22) Wz (FF3E22) (307) -
40,283 42,731
Change in working capital (excluding &iE& &%
the effects of exchange differences (REHerBEREEEZ
on consolidation) [ENZETE)
— Inventories -FE (7,864) (17,586)
— Trade receivables, prepayments —FERBZER-
and other receivables TET FRIE K&
HoAth e Wk I (5,043) 591
— Trade payables, accruals and —“EBRNEBESER:
other payables EFtER K
H A & < 5B 3,298 (4,597)
— Net changes in balances with —EEMENTEGRZ
related companies e Dt (1,218) 582
Cash generated from operations ¥BELEZHS 29,456 (9,122)
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31

(a)

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 HEBERERME (])
CASH FLOWS (continued)
Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) XBEEZRL (H)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds TiReReRERN HEWE W
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: B REHEZFERIBERRE:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
USs$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE (MFE7) 512 489
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMERZEZ
plant and equipment (Note 22) &8 (M5E22) (426) (340)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE BELRLEBZ
plant and equipment FriS 8 86 149
(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (b) (E¥K) BReFEZHE
This section sets out an analysis of net (debt)/cash and REHHFINE2F BBz (E%)

the movements in net (debt)/cash for each of the periods

R F@EAME (B HEeFHE

presented. EE) o
Net (debt)/cash (&%) ReFHE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Cash and cash equivalents ReMkReEEY 34,215 49,679
Bank borrowings — repayable HITER R —FARNEE

within one year 36,166 35,397
Bank borrowings — repayable HITER-—R—FREE

after one year 36,166 35,397

Net (debt)/cash (&%) B FE (1,951) 14,282

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 34,215 49,679

Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERREE—EEF X 36,166 35,397

Gross debt — variable interest rates BB F xR 36,166 35,397

Net (debt)/cash (B8 /HeFm (1,951) 14,282
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31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (continued)

31

REBRaRERME (W)

(b) (fE®) REeFHE2HE (H)

Liabilities from

Assets financing activities
BE REMETBH2EE
Bank Bank
Cash  borrowings  borrowings
and cash due within due after
equivalents 1 year 1 year
Bek R—SREH R-F£IH
BeEEY 2RTENR  ZB/TEX
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET TEn
Net cash as at R-Z—-tF—-HF—-A2
1 January 2017 ReFE 55,210 (12,620) (24,190)
Cash flows BeRE (6,462) 5,036 (3,623)
Foreign exchange adjustments R 931 - -
Other non-cash movement HibIEBReEH - (8,322) 8,322
Net cash as at R-ZE—+tF
31 December 2017 +=ZB=+-82
e FE 49,679 (15,906) (19,491)
Cash flows Rene (14,307) 6,733 (7,502)
Foreign exchange adjustments CNEREE (1,157) - -
Other non-cash movement HipdER e & - (11,296) 11,296
Net debt as at R-ZZE—-N\F
31 December 2018 +ZA=+-8%2
B FE 34,215 (20,469) (15,697)
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REMBRERME
32 COMMITMENTS 32 KiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEIE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end REERREMRDTHNERESE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEARSZEIAT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTERx FET
Contracted but not provided for ERTA B R B E
Property, plant and equipment Y B MR 2,493 1,864
Investment in an associate REEE AR ZIRE
(Note 11) (BFzET1) 112 2,632
2,605 4,496
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) RERHRIE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease REEBFE AT HEBELCEHL AR
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as RRZ A HERERBERENT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Us$’000 US$'000
FTEx FET
No later than one year BN —F 308 139
Later than one year and ER—FEMNERTEF
no later than five years 637 422
Later than five years BRAF 1,926 2,032
2,871 2,593
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HRAR

At 31 December 2018, the Company has given guarantees for RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H AQAA
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$128,600,000 B/ A7) & %0128,600,0005 7T ( =T —+
(2017:US$120,426,000), of which US$79,067,000 (2017: % :120,426,000% 7T) 2 IRITRLE R HIE
US$74,249,000) has not been utilised. R+ H 79,067,000 Tt (ZF — L F:
74,249,000% 7T ) M AR B A
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(a)

(b)

The table below summarises the related parties and (a)
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

December 2018:

Related party
FBHEAL

3 ARAEALES
AREBRRERTREREK EXEE
BGBEERLE BIELRE HBXERE 5
HEESE A HEINEL  BaERLE  BR
NEE -BXAKLE BHRELE HBXBK
T BB L RGRIEL L

TEBMAR—_ZT—-NF+ A
“t+—HBzBEBEALREEALRE
ErEEREE -

Relationship with the Group
BR 7N £ E Y BE R

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”)
KA ERGBERRT ([BEKA])
Dacin International Holdings Ltd.
EMERZERER AT

Capron Group Limited

Capron Group Limited

A substantial shareholder of the Company
RARBFEERR

An associate of the Group

N SN0} N

A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
—fR BB RRELRZESZ AR

Significant related party transactions, which were carried

(b) EXAKEAEXHEETETHNE

out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as REBEATRSIT:
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 SPESTE FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan magrRiEEEn (i) 8,687 5,901
Technical support fee paid to BN SRR
Taiwan Vedan YTiRE (ii) 2,180 2,181
Agency commission income A & & R KR Y
received from Taiwan Vedan REASWA (i) 2 4
Notes: M =
0 In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) ARAREERE MABEBEALTE
the related party were conducted in the normal course of B2 HEERTAEXEKAREFRH
business. 1T°

(i)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the
terms of underlying agreements.

(iy ARAEFERR ZEXZEAR
X BRRET X EARBER
AR E -
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FREALES (&])

(c) Key management compensation (0)
The compensation paid or payable to key management,
including all executive directors and senior management,
for employee services is shown below.

TEEEAEHSE
REERBENABBNTEIZEEA
B(BEMERTEERERER
E)Z2HMEZN T -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other short-term HehEMEHEERF
employee benefits 3,469 3,903
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HEBEBEALTZFRLEGEH

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following
significant balances with the related parties:

RZFB-N\F+_A=1+—RH *&
BERBEFEANLZTEHEBRMOT:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
o= SPESTE FET
Current: Bl Ef -
Amount due from Taiwan FEM & Z WK T 2 5/ 8
Vedan (i) 1,191 242
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FEfT B2 K 2 5IE 0) (1,391) (1,647)
Short term loan to an associate LTEERAZ
REE R (ii) 120 120
Amount due to Capron J& 1 Capron Group
Group Limited LimitedZ 18 (iii) - (13)
Notes: B 5E
(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i) BERNHTA &1 A EIEHE -

free and have no fixed terms of payment.

(i) The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears
interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and is
repayable on demand.

(iii) ~ The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured,

interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 FAFREARRREMRED
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

AAREERER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note uUss$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 SEE FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRZKE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REgE RN T2 "E 6,308 3,788
Loan to a subsidiary HLTYHBRAZER - 2,200
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 172,338 172,018
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B BB A R R R 39,245 49,111
Short-term loan to an associate 4T RN B 2 BB K 120 120
Short-term loan to a subsidiary LTRBARIZEEER 1,200 -
Prepayments and other receivables T8 - 3R I8 & H Ath E IR 679 678
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 2,839 1,928
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEY 3,022 14,555
Total current assets RBEEHAE 47,105 66,392
Total assets EEHAE 219,443 238,410
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners of RRATEEB AEGER
the Company
Share capital [N 15,228 15,228
Reserves ®iE (Note (a))
(FMI5E()) 199,803 218,874
Total equity fERERE 215,031 234,102
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 FAFEEARKRRFERSE ()
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) ERAREEEER (&)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
k=g FEr FE7T
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT 8 A & E Ath FEA R 3,017 3,291
Bank borrowings HRITEE - 670
Current income tax liabilities BERFTE B E 4 -
Amount due to a related party JERNT B REEA LT FIE 1,391 347
Total current liabilities BB EHEEE 4,412 4,308
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 219,443 238,410
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board AR EEBERCEESFER_Z—N
of Directors on 26 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf. FZRAZ AT A TIATREKE
E-
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
HEEE Rk
Director Director
E= 2
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35

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 XNFREARKRFEMSE (K)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) rRAREEEER (&)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company M st (a) A R B & &)
Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
ROBER
HibfR1E ERFEE REBF maE
Us$'000 Us$'000 uUs$'000 Us$'000
FE FET F=T FET
At 1 January 2017 W-Z—+&—HF—H 194,098 (131) 49,549 243,516
Comprehensive loss 2HEEER
Loss for the year KEFEEEIE - - (7,332) (7,332)
Other comprehensive income Hftht 2 E U A
Currency translation difference  [E X =% - 105 - 105
Total comprehensive 2EBA(FR)EE
income/(loss) - 105 (7,332) (7,227)
Dividends paid BTIRE - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF
+=ZA=+—H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—A— 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year KEEEIE - - (7,704) (7,704)
Other comprehensive income Hftt ZE U A
Currency translation difference  [EH %= %8 - (85) - (85)
Total comprehensive loss 2EHEBRERE - (85) (7,704) (7,789)
Dividends paid BT S - - (11,282) (11,282)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803
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EFHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31

BE+-RA=1+—HLFEFRSXE

DECEMBER
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\FE —ZT—+tF —T—RF T—HF —T—NEOF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
Revenue &S 356,772 322,805 327,640 327,821 325,627
Profit/(loss) before B FIT 15 %5 Bl
income tax mA (EE) 22,007 23,308 28,476 15,878 (1,496)
Income tax expense FTiS %t (4,613) (4,570) (6,243) (4,048) (1,432)
Profit/(loss) attributable AN Q FHEA A
to owners of JEAE ST
the Company (&) 14,285 19,061 22,501 12,095 (2,434)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-BA=+—HHBREEERAR
DECEMBER
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E2-N\E =T+t =ZT—RE =ZT—HF Z—T—NF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
SFEEm FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EENAE
Total assets BERE 367,805 358,701 356,790 356,629 378,440
Total liabilities BERTE (81,123) (76,118) (77,584) (83,179) (111,341)
Total equity T 286,682 282,583 279,206 273,450 267,099
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Reference for Shareholders

Place of Listing

Stock Code
HKEx

Access to Bloomberg
Access to Reuters

Board Lot
Par Value

Trading Currency

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Main Board of

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317.HK

4,000

US$0.01

HKD

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

31 December 2018
26 March 2019

14 May 2019

In the last week of
August 2019*

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

Bslip:i

B tn A aR

B 32 P

Z g R E

& A AR E
BEEM
(G =1
RHEH
METER
EEERE
EFEERMH
BEREFAE
FHEIRE QM

S 1 T

B 5% AR %5

BB R PR

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317.HK

4,000

0.01% 7T
BT

—E-N\F+ZHA=1+—8
—E-AF=ZA-1+H
—E-NAFRA+TA
ZE-NFNAR
& — B2

EOBBARNHBE RERZER  FHEARRE
ZEBEMBFELSE:

EEEEFEROA

it

ERRNERI183R

& A 02218

E 3% 1 (852) 2980 1768
{8 H : (852) 2528 3158

FERRRRO 2 AL BRI FHERE
MEBBEMBEELDE -
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Investor Relations

REEBE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. Information about an environmental issue related
to its Vietnam operation was relayed to investors. This is in line
with the Group’'s commitment to keep up open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring that investors fully understand its
operations in order for them to make sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis of maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group hosted
a total of 22 one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with major
international institutional investors including Guotai Junan Securities,
Haitong International, Daiwa Capital and UOB Kay Hian, among
others, employing all the different important channels to nurture
good investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com
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